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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rochem Separation Systems
(India) Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

* Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon
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e In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports
of the other auditors.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive

Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company being a private company, section 197 of the Act related to the
managerial remuneration is not applicable.

h.With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 61.03 to the financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in the note 61.04 to the financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has
not proposed final dividend for the year.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 049660
UDIN: 22049660AWVXGG7567

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rochem Separation
Systems (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over
financial reporting established by the respective Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 049660
UDIN: 22049660AWVXGG7567

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2022
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the members of Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited of
even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that,

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(i)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment, capital

()

(d)

(e)

work-in-progress and right-of-use assets so to cover all the items once every 3 years
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, all Property, Plant and Equipment
were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by the
Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to
us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that,
the title deeds of all the immovable properties of land and buildings (other than
properties  where the Company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial
statements included in property, plant and equipment, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date. Immovable properties of land and buildings
whose title deeds have been pledged as security for loans, guarantees, etc., are held
in the name of the Company based on the confirmations directly received by us from
lenders / custodians.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(a) The inventories except for goods-in-transit and stocks held with third parties, were

physically verified during the year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion and based on information and explanations given to us, the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. For stocks held with third
parties at the year-end, written confirmations have been obtained and in respect of
goods-in-transit, the goods have been received subsequent to the year end from the
parties. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
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inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories/alternate
procedures performed as applicable, when compared with the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at

- points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of

(i)

security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the revised quarterly statements comprising (stock
statements and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables,
and other stipulated financial information) filed by the Company with such banks
or financial institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of
the Company of the respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been
observed.

The Company has made investments in mutual fund during the year. The
Company has not provided any guarantee or security, and granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year, except for
extension of existing loan given to a party.

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and
hence reporting under clause (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The investments made, during the year are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loan granted by the Company in previous year, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. The
Company has extended the said loan during the year and are now repayable
on demand. During the year the Company has not demanded such loan.
Having regard to the fact that the repayment of principal or payment of
interest has not been demanded by the Company, in our opinion the
repayment of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company, there is
no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) During the year loans aggregating to Rs. 100.00 lakhs (given during the
previous year) fell due from a party and extension aggregating to Rs. 100.00
lakhs was granted to such party to settle the overdues of existing loans. The
details of such loan that fell due and those extended during the year are
stated below:

Name of the party Aggregate amount of | Percentage of the
overdues of existing aggregate to the
loan extended total loans granted
(Rs. in lakhs) during the year
Calvin Associates Private Limited 100.00 100%

o224



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(f) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (iii)(f) is not
applicable.

(iv) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any

(v)

loans, made investments or provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the
provisions of sections 185 or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence reporting under
clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government

under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for Companies in the sector of
other machinery and mechanical appliances. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and
are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, duty of Custom, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has been a delay in few
cases in respect of remittance of Provident Fund and Employees’ State Insurance.
We have been informed that the provisions of the duty of Excise and Value added tax
are not applicable to the Company.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:
. . Amount Amount
Name of Nature of FoDriL;mu\évehiesre Pet';::dAt'::ov::'tCh involved unpaid
Statute Dues Pe?'\din Relates (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in
9 lakhs) A
Deputy 13.28 13.28
Income Tax Income .
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner of 2020-21
Income Tax
Central Sales Sales Tax Appellate : 18.74 12.19
Tax Act, 1956 Sales Tax Tribunal RG0S
Central Sales |Sales Tax [Sales Tax Appellate [2010-11 43.02 32.06
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Tax Act, 1956 Tribunal
Service Tax Service . 103.71 103.71
Act, 1994 Tax Bombay High Court [2015-16
Customs Act, |Customs [Commissioner of 2011-12 1.06 1.06
1962 Duty Customs (Appeal)

~ Net of amount paid under protest

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which
the loans were obtained and there are no unutilised term loans at the beginning of
the year.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for
long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and hence reporting on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during
the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.
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(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 188 of the Companies Act for
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period up to December 31, 2021 and the final internal audit reports
where issued after the balance sheet date covering the period January 01, 2022 to
March 31, 2022 for the period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) The Group does not have any Investment Company (CIC) as part of the group and
accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of other than

ongoing projects, the Company has not transferred unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) amount, to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act, 2013 within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act. The
details of the amounts unspent, the amounts transferred and the amounts remaining
to be transferred are given below:

Financial year| Amount unspent on [Amount transferred Amount Amount
Corporate Social to Fund specified in |transferred after| pending to be

activities “other than | 6 months from the |(specify the date| at the report

Ongoing Projects” as |end of the Financial of deposit) date
at Balance Sheet date Year (Rs. in lakhs) | (Rs. in lakhs)
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
2020-21 21.06 . s 21.06
Refer Note 1
below

Note 1 - As per Form CSR-2 for financial year 2020-21, filed with Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, management has stated that, even though there is a shortfall
reflecting in above, the company has given an advance of Rs. 25.00 lakhs, towards
supply of oxygen plant as of March 31, 2021 and balance amount for oxygen plant of
Rs. 60.00 lakhs was paid in the month of April 2021.

(b) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social

Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring
a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the

said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

U

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 049660

UDIN: 22049660AWVXGG7567

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 29, 2022

Responsibility Schedule VII within| the due date | transferred as




Rochem Separatlon Systemns (Indla) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Balance Sheet

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise siated)

Partlculars Nutes As at As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 4 2,770.18 3,206.61 2,946.08
Right-of-use assets 9 3,408.04 4,408.52 4,384,27
Capital woik-in-progress 5 797 17.05 12.25
Goodwill 6 1,083.76 1,083.76 1,083.76
Other intangible assets 7/ 5343 56.40 88.75
Intangible assets under development 8 - 2240 2240
Financial assets
Investments 10 4550 Q.50 0.50
Other financial assets 11 731.92 807.47 599 41
Deferred tax assels (net) 453 35331 262.25 24017
Cunent tax assets (net) 12 40,04 2247 2247
Other non-cwitent assets 13 321.88 325.34 32526
Total non-current assets 8,816.03 10,212.77 9,725.32
Current asscts
Inventories 14 8,947.81 8,860.43 11,618 .40
Financial assets
Trade receivables 15 10,627.87 11,751.65 13,629.9]
Cash and cash equivalents 16 88.60 29.81 58.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 17 52293 569.62 494.86
Loans 18 115.93 106.13 449
Other financial assets 19 134.02 169.03 263.71
Other cuivent assets 20 2,161.17 1,208.80 1,719.72
T'etal current assets 22,598.33 22,695.47 27,789.41
TOTAL ASSETS 31,414.36 32,908.24 37,514.73
EQUITY AND LIABILITILS
EQUITY
Equity sharc capital 21 5000 50.00 50.00
Other equity 22 11,356.74 10,583.75 10,278 69
TOTAL EQUITY 11.,406.74 10.633.75 10.328.69
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 23 754.04 1,103.13 500.12
Lease liabilities 24 1,883 88 2,883.82 3,134.03
Other financial liabilities 25 - 229 5.05
Provisions 26 33845 354,78 295.17
Othet non-cunent liabilities 27 14,68 27.08 4139
Total non-current liabilities 2,991.05 4,371.10 3,975.76
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Boirowings 28 5,895.33 5,416,55 6,734.39
Lease linbilities 29 997.62 992,08 687.27
Trade payables 30
(i) total outstanding dues of micvo enterpriscs and small enterprises 802.04 477.39 251.23
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and sinall 7.788.15 9,493.28 12,388.80
enlerprises
Other financial liabilities k)| 245.66 126.45 215.82
Provisions 32 174.71 186.66 18526
Contract liabilities 3 522.21 811.58 2,323.00
Current (ax liabililies (net) 34 12197 132,92 298.28
Other current liabilities 35 468 88 266.48 12623
Total current Uabillties 17,016.57 17,903.39 23,210.28
TOTAL LIABILITIES 20.007.62 22.274.49 27.186.04
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 31,414.36 32.908.24 37.514.73
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1 to 61
The accompanying notes aic an integial part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP Rochem Separatifin Systems (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Fivny's Registrition No 't 117366W/W-100018 ~ -
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Date: 29h Scptember, 2022
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Managing Dircctor
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DIN: 00348563

Place: Mumbai
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Statement of Profit and Loss

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
0 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
INCOME
Revenue from operations 36 28,321.19 28,759.42
Other income 37 285.70 597.38
Total Income 28.606.89 29,356.80
EXPENSES
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 38 13,465.36 12,997.42
Purchases of stock-in-trade 39 1,680.33 1,027.06
Increase / (decrease) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 40 (145.48) 2,758.47
Employee benefits expense 41 3,247.73 3,518.43
Finance costs 42 1,237.96 1,467.77
Depreciation and amortization expense 43 1,649.21 1,652.59
Other expenses 44 6,467.91 5,314.51
Total Expenses 27.603.02 28.,736.25
Profit before tax 1,003.87 620.55
Tax expense
Current tax 45.1 402.87 337.70
Income tax pertaining to earlier years 45.1 (69.87) -
Deferred tax (credit) 45.3 (91.06) (22.08)
/
Total 241.94 315.62
Profit for the year 761.93 304.93
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 11.06 0.13
(b) Income tax relating to items under (a) above - =
11.06 0.13
Other comprehensive income 11.06 0.13
Totul comprehensive income for the year 772.99 305.06
Earnings per Equity Share (face value Rs 100/- each)
Basic (in Rs.) 46 1,523.77 609.83
Diluted (in Rs.) 46 1,411.04 564.79
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements 1to 61
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No : 117366W/W-100018
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Nilesh Shah

Partner Managing Director Whole time Director
Membership No: 049660 DIN: 00348519 DIN: 00348563
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 29th September, 2022 Date: 29th September, 2022 Date: 29th September, 2022
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Rochem Separation Systens (India) Private Limnited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Cash Flow Statement

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st Warch, 2021
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,003.87 620.55
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,649 21 1,652.59
Dividend income (105} =
Provision for doubtful advances 53.18 1.75
Bad debts written off 293,43 1.12
Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets 42.70 607.48
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required (78.46) (65.41)
Sundry debit balance wrillen off 51.94 137.43
Clain on derecognition of leases (53.20) -
Unrealised foreign exchange differences (gain) (19.93) (68.01)
Unrealised profit on sale and lease back tiansaction - 14.56
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment {0.05) -
Liquidated damages 8.30 15.62
Interest income (107.45) (118.04)
Finance costs 1,237.96 1, 467.77
Operating Profit before working capital changes 4,081.45 4,267.41
Decrease in trade receivables 822.56 1,301.93
(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (885.64) 302.10
(Increase) / Decrease in invenlories (81.35) 2,757.97
(BPecrease] in trade and olher payables (1,334 .44) {3,975.05)
Cash generated from operations 2,603.54 4,654.36
Direct taxes paid (including tax deducted at source) (361.43) (503.06)
Net cash generated trom operating activities (A) 2,242.11 4,151.30
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of assets (property, plant & equipment and intangible assets, capilal work-in- (106.04) (873.93)
progress)
Investiment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months) (Net) (2.43) (98.53)
Loans given (9.80) (101.64)
Dividend received 0.05 -
Interest received 4282 3452
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (75.40) (1,039.58)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from/ (Repayment of) short-term borrowings (net) 585.60 (1,596.21)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 14.85 1,075.04
(Repayment) of long-term boriowings (318.28) (211.56)
Redermption of unsecured compulsory convertible debentures (175.00) -
Payment of lease liabilities (1,014.12) (946.84)
Interest paid (1.200.97) {A60.60)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (2,107.92) (3,140.23)
Net increase / (decrcase) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 58.79 (28.51)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year (see below) 29.81 58,32
Cash nind cash equivilents ot the end of yeur (See below) Hi.60 29.81
Notes:
(i) Cash flow statement has been prepared under "indirect method" as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Cash Flow Statement"
(ii) Analysis ol movement in borrowings*
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Borrowings at the beginning of the year 6,519.68 7,234.51
Movement due to cash transactions as per cash flow statement 107.17 (732.72)
Movement due to non-cash transactions 22,52 17.89
Bomowings at the end of the year 6.649.37 6.519.68

* The above cashflows excludes items of non-cash nature in relation to accounting of operating lease under IndAS 116.

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial statements

1 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No : 117366W/W-100018

Y

Nilesh Shah /s
Partner J/E
Membership No: 049660 f{

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th September, 2022
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Managing Director
DIN: 00348519

Place: Mumbat
Date: 29th September, 2022
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Prerak Goel
Whole time Director
DIN: 00348563

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29th September, 2022
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

1.

2.1.

3.1.

Company’s background

Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private limited company domiciled
and incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 vide CIN No. U24100MH1991PTC064068 and
incorporated on 19th November 1991. The Company is a private limited company. The registered office of the
Company is located at 101, HDIL Towers Limited, Anant Kanekar Marg, Mumbai - 400 051, India.

Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) is engaged in the business of
manufacturing water treatment systems, water pollution control equipment, bio filters, resource recovery
systems using membrane technology and operational and maintenance services. The Company caters to
both domestic and international markets.

Basis of preparation
Basis of preparation and presentation

The Financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as
Ind AS) notified under the section 133 of the Act (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
considering other relevant provisions of the Act.

Up to the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of previous GAAP, which includes Standard notified under the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. These are the Company’s first Ind AS Financial statements. The date of transition
to Ind AS is April 1, 2020. Refer Note 55 for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the
Company.

The Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 have been approved by the
Board of Directors at their meeting held on September 29, 2022.

Significant Accounting Policies
Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is current when:

o Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents. Based on the nature of service and the time between rendering of services and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, 12 months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of current / non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.




Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

3.2

3.3.

3.4.

=5

Functional and presentation currency

Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity

operates (‘the functional currency’). The Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
also the Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest Lakhs, up to two
places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated. Amounts having absolute value of less than INR 1,00,000 have
been rounded and are presented as INR Lakhs in the Financial Statements.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
market or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use
of unobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not
based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purpose using methods as prescribed in
“Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement”.

Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles
of Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in application of accounting
policies that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the
date of Financial Statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statements were
prepared. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised, and future periods are affected.

Key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date

within the next financial year. Significant estimates and critical judgement in applying these accounlin; \j_\_:
are described below: J'Ji\
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

3.4.1.

Significant accounting judgements

(i) Leases

3.4.2.

A
i

()

(i)

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has several lease
contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
Accordingly, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the
renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Estimates and assum ptions
Impairment of non-financial assets (property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right of use asset)

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an assets or Cash Generating Unit’s
(CGU’s) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
asset. In determining the fair value less costs to disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If
no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

Defined benefit obligations

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan, other defined benefit plan and other post-employment plans are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, expected returns on plan assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change
only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases, discount rate and return on planned
assets are based on expected future inflation rates for India.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward

looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Further, the Company also evaluates risk with respeet=——

to expected loss on account of loss in time value of money which is calculated using average cost of QRP_“}IF"- g

for relevant financial assets. "‘r"
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&

Deferred tax assets are not recognised for unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit

available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement/estimate is require **tcm:—_-;;

determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details on taxes are disclosed in
note 3.15.
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited

CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

(v) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

3.5.

Some of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and input for fair value measurements.
For estimates relating to fair value measurement, refer note 3.3.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Recognition and measurement

Under the previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were carried at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has availed the optional exemption under Ind
AS 101 and accordingly it has used the carrying value as at the date of transitions as the deemed cost of the
property, plant & equipment under Ind AS.

Property plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. Cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment includes purchase price including non - refundable taxes and duties, borrowing cost directly
attributable to the qualifying asset, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for its intended use and the present value of the expected cost for the
dismantling/decommissioning of the asset.

Parts (major components) of an item of property, plant and equipment having different useful lives are
accounted as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of cost incurred on property, plant and equipment under construction /
acquisition that are not yet ready for their intended use at the Balance Sheet Date. Advances paid towards the
acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date is classified as Capital Advances under “Other Non-
Current Assets” and assets which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Financial Statements are
disclosed as "Capital Work in Progress".

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment (other than capital work in progress) is provided on a written
down value method (WDV) over their useful lives which is in consonance of useful life mentioned in Schedule
II to the Companies Act, 2013 or useful lives as determined based on internal technical evaluation. The
estimated useful lives are as under:

Type of asset Useful lives
estimated by the
management (years)
Building 30

Plant and machinery 3-20 P SISTE

f AR e i L S
Furniture and fixture 2-20 N NN
Vehicles 5-10 1“7 Yo \
Office equipment 2-10 o k BUMRAL = }r'J
Computer — End user devices 3-5 NS pat )
Computer — Server 5-6 *&G\; — ‘76"'-:/,'?

I _fﬂ-,/

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values, determined based on internal technical evaluation are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on

de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

%
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3.6.

3.7.

Intangible assets and amortisation
Recognition and measurement

Under the previous GAAP, intangible assets were carried at historical cost less amortization and impairment
losses, if any. On transition to Ind AS, the Company has availed the optional exemption under Ind AS 101 and
accordingly it has used the carrying value as at the date of transition as the deemed cost of the intangible assets
under Ind AS.

Intangible assets are recognized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to asset will
flow to the Company and the cost of asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost of
acquisition/development less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss if any.

Cost of an intangible asset includes purchase price including non - refundable taxes and duties, borrowing cost
directly attributable to the qualifying asset and any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready
for its intended use.

Intangible assets under development comprises of cost incurred on intangible assets under development that are
not yet ready for their intended use as at the Balance Sheet date.

Amortization and useful lives

Intangible assets with finite lives comprise of technology and trademark and software, are amortized over the
period of 10 years or useful life whichever is less on straight-line basis. Amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively. Intangible assets with indefinite lives
comprise of brands and trademarks for which there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which they are
expected to generate cash inflows. These are considered to have an indefinite life given the strength and
durability of the brand and the level of marketing support. For intangible assets with indefinite lives the
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether it continues, if not, it is impaired or
changed prospectively basis the revised estimates.

In case of assets purchased / sold during the year, amortization on such assets is calculated on pro-rata basis
from the date of such addition.

Leases

The determination of whether a contract is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the contract at the
inception of the lease. The contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract provide lessee, the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A lessee does not have the right to
use an identified asset if, at inception of the contract, a lessor has a substantive right to substitute the asset
throughout the period of use.

The Company accounts for the lease arrangement as follows:
(i) Where the Company is the lessee
Right of Use Asset

The Company applies single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short term leases
and leases of low value assets. On the commencement of the lease, the Company, in its Balance Sheet, recognised
the right of use asset at cost and lease liability at present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease
term.

Subsequently, the right of use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation [calculated on straight line
method] and any accumulated impairment loss. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the lease term as follows:

Asset category Lease Term cﬂ-’*"g'-“-‘? _
Lease hold land 58 to 78 years %ﬁ,ﬁ}“ ~ e\
Plant and Machinery More than 1 year — 7 years ﬁ' ;;T
Office Premises More than 1 year — 7 years 'fé‘i MUKBA
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. \‘\?»\
N
), \-u..,._,-—f."
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset. The lease payment made, are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of lease liability and are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It
also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Lease deposits given are a financial asset and are measured at amortised cost under Ind AS 109 since it satisfies
Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) condition. The difference between the present value and the
nominal value of deposit is considered as Right of Use Asset and depreciated over the lease term. Unwinding of
discount is treated as finance income and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(ii) Where the entity is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from
the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease

Lease deposits received are financial instruments (financial liability) and are measured at fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the fair value and the nominal value of deposits is considered as rent in
advance and recognised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Unwinding of discount is treated as interest
expense (finance cost) for deposits received and is accrued as per the EIR method.

Sale and lease back

If an entity (the seller-lessee) transfers an asset to another entity (the buyer-lessor) and leases that asset back -

from the buyer-lessor, both the seller-lessee and the buyer-lessor are required to account for the transfer conn.zfc.[') w ”' B
and the lease by applying Ind AS 116 Para 99 to 103. ._‘f g AN
- =
(i) Transfer of the asset is not a sale \u” L
\% j‘?.i
Y \\ Ay

If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee does not satisfy the requirements of Ind AS 115 and wherein if® xhn‘“- St
seller-lessee has a substantive repurchase option with respect to the underlying asset, the Company (seller-"mmsc=5="
lessee)

e  De-recognises the sale (revenue) in books with corresponding impact on the cost of goods sold (COGS)
to eliminate the profit margin in the transaction.
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3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

e Recognises transferred asset (Right of use asset) net of profit margin and a financial liability equal to the
present value of minimum lease payments applying relevant paragraph of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 116.

(ii) Transfer of the asset is a sale

If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee does satisfy the requirements of Ind AS 115 and wherein if the
seller-lessee do not have a substantive repurchase option with respect to the underlying asset., the Company
(seller-lessee)

e De-recognises the profit margin in the transaction by reducing the sale (revenue) to that effect in books.

e  Recognises transferred asset (Right of use asset) net of profit margin and a financial liability equal to the
present value of minimum lease payments applying relevant paragraph of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 116.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for any indication of impairment based
on internal / external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of a) fair value of assets less cost of
disposal and b) its value in use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows expected to derive from
an assets or Cash-Generating Unit (CGU).

Based on the assessment done at each balance sheet date, recognised impairment loss is further provided or
reversed depending on changes in circumstances. After recognition of impairment loss or reversal of
impairment loss as applicable, the depreciation charge for the asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful
life. If the conditions leading to recognition of impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased, impairment
losses recognised are reversed to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined after considering depreciation / amortisation had no impairment loss been recognised in earlier
years.

Inventories
Inventories include raw materials and components, work in progress, traded and manufactured finished goods.

Cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Raw materials, components are ascertained based on weighted average method. However, raw materials and
other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Costs are determined on weighted
average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes direct
materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Net
realizable value for work in progress is determined with reference to the selling price of related finished goods.
Trade goods are considered at landed cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs, gf-r

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 7 g 2N
/ -~ : /’;’ o,
/ f’ Yo\
Provision is made for the cost of obsolescence and other anticipated losses, whenever considered necesn.ﬁzgf skt ¥z .
! n );.' |
s v
Revenue recognition \ A

(v
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are l'ransterm-f:—--
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Company has concluded that it is principal in its revenue
arrangements, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer. The

. policy of recognizing the revenue is determined by the five-stage model proposed by Ind AS 115 “Revenue
; from contract with customers”,

v
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3.12.

(a) Revenue from operations:

e Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

e Revenue from sale of services is recognized on rendering of services to the customers based on
contractual arrangements. Revenue is recorded exclusive of goods and service tax. Contract prices are
either fixed or subject to price escalation clauses.

e Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services

® Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.

e Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

¢ Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability”) is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.

(b) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss.

(c) Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.
(d) Other income

Other incomes are accounted on accrual basis, except interest on delayed payment by debtors and
liquidated damages which are accounted on acceptance of the Company’s claim.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as
income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs, which they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as
deferred income and is allocated to statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the== o7
asset. v

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company in its functional currency spot :d];;bs at

the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. \‘\"‘-9"8 ™
W o+

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency s,pui'
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange difference that arises on settlement of monetary items or on
reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are recognized as
income or expenses in the period in which they arise. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

\\;'»‘l\)istorical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI, or the statement of profit
and loss are also recognised in OCI or the statement of profit and loss, respectively)

(g/é/

i,
._1_.,1’ wuu‘ﬁ‘
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3.13. Employee benefits
e  Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits and they are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

e Post-employment benefits & other long-term benefits
a. Defined contribution plan

The defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company contributes
fixed contribution to a Government Administered Fund and will have no obligation to pay further
contribution. The Company’s defined contribution plan comprises of Provident Fund, Labour Welfare
Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, National Pension Scheme, and Employee Pension Scheme.
The Company’s contribution to defined contribution plans are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b. Post-employment benefit and other long-term benefits

The Company has defined benefit plans comprising of gratuity and other long-term benefits in the form
of leave benefits. Company’s obligation towards gratuity liability is funded / unfunded. The present
value of the defined benefit obligations and other long term employee benefits is determined based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The rate used to discount defined benefit
obligation is determined by reference to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government
Bonds for the estimated term of obligations.

For gratuity plan, re-measurements comprising of (a) actuarial gains and losses, (b) the effect of the
asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and (c) the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the post-employment benefits
liability) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to the
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified
to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs.

Actuarial gains or losses arising on account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in
actuarial assumptions for employee benefit plan [other than gratuity] are recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis.

3.14. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or
sale. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale. Ancillary cost of borrowings in respect of loans not disbursed are carried forward and accounted as
borrowing cost in the year of disbursement of loan. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest expenses calculated as per effective interest method, exchange
difference arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are treated as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

Taxes on income

Tax expenses for the year comprises of current tax, deferred tax charge or credit and adjustments of taxes for
earlier years. In respect of amounts adjusted outside profit or loss (i.e., in other comprehensive income or
equity), the corresponding tax effect, if any, is also adjusted outside profit or loss.

Current tax is measured at the amount of tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustments to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years as determined in accordance with the
provisions of the Income Tax Act,1961 that have been enacted or subsequently enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax
losses and allowances can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax assets can be utilized. In situations where the Company has unused tax losses
and unused tax credits, deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that they can be utilized against
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets are reviewed for the appropriateness of their respective carrying
amounts at each Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit allows
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Cash & cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances, deposits with banks (other than on lien) and all
short term and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts ot payments-~ 1) (575
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows fi pm;. = 4""“ f\_
operating, investing and financing activities are segregated. k Y A
P . .'!-t’;l' CULLLY }-’.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets (G )z
\’* \‘ Ay
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of}m_spo » ej_\;‘/:_-:r

event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obhgatlon in respect of which™ m.f'.ﬂ-'*
areliable estimate can be made. If the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using

a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used,

the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at

each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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3.19. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholders’ and
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of shares also
include fixed number of equity shares that are issuable on conversion of compulsorily convertible preference
shares, debentures or any other instrument, from the date consideration is receivable (generally the date of their
issue) of such instruments.

Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to the shareholder’ and
weighted average number of equity and potential equity shares outstanding during the year including share
options, convertible preference shares and debentures, except where the result would be anti-dilutive. Potential
equity shares that are converted during the year are included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share,
from the beginning of the year or date of issuance of such potential equity shares, to the date of conversion.

3.20. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.

3.21. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.21.1. Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. All recognised financial assets are
subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of
the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymcnl:,
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. oot _‘_-,.'. '1 .‘

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. i

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of aIInca{‘hg-._T_- i
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,

or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets

classified as at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and
is included in the “Other income” line item.

Qj2//"
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Investments in equity instruments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the ‘Reserve for equity instruments through other comprehensive income’. The cumulative gain
or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
e It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

e On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.
Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s
right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included
in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity
instruments which are not held for trading.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model based on ‘simplified
approach’ for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade
receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all
other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the twelve-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at
the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in
statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial asset

The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. y T
f', ‘.."‘- ‘m.
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3.21.2.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g., when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have
otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liability and equity instrument
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs. Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-recognition
or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company,
and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in
accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration —
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is hala_,a 31

w{- 51)\ '-.'\‘

for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. { ’ \r;i
>
e .. A
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: 'k‘” ,\ ay );
<

I) o
e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or \ ""o e .5{.:/.-‘{

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the CUI'I'I[)-:II\N:'
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
o itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by
the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

¢ such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise.

L



Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

e the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Companying is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on
the financial liability and is included in the ‘Finance Cost’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in
which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss. The remaining amount of
change in the fair value of liability is always recognised in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in
retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense
that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

e the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18.

Compound financial instruments

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value of a similar
liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is recognised initially as the difference
between the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and the equity components,
if material, in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is measured__

at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity component of a compound fin fe asl.‘f-i__‘{?‘\'\
. . s ey . . . o
instrument is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition except on conversion or expiry. A

@




Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN No: U24100MH1991PTC064068
Notes to Financial Statements

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Reclassification

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The management
determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the
Company’s operations. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with
substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial
liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in statement of profit or loss.

3.22, Recent accounting and other pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS 16, Property Plant and equipment — The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced
over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable
costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there
is no impact on its Financial Statements.

Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of
fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated
the amendment and there is no impact on its Financial Statements.

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments The amendment clarifies the treatment of any cost or fees incurred by an entity in the

process of derecognition of financial liability in case of repurchase of the debt instrument by the issuer. The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its Financial Statements.
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the Balance Sheet {Continued)

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10

11

111

1.2

1.3

12

12.1

13

Investments
Particulars As at As at As at
31s¢ March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
(Measured a1 I'VIPL)
(I Iny ts in ted inv t
Investment in equity shares
Saraswat Co-operative Bank 050 0.50 0.50
Number of equity shares (face value of Rs. 10 each): 5,000 (5,000; 5,000)
(IT) Investments in quoted investement
Investments in mutual fund
Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Growth-Regular Plan (formerly known as 45.00 L
Aditya Birla Sun Life Floaling Rale Fund Short Term Plan)
Number of units : 15,314 09 (Nil; Nil)
Totat 45.50 0.50 0.50
Aggregate carrying amounl of quoted investmenls 45.00 -
Apggregate market value of quoted investments 4537 - -
Agorepate carrying amount of unquoted investments 0.50 050 050
Other financial assets (Non-current)
Particulars As at As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Security deposits (Refernote 111 and 11 3) 699 14 778 81 594 52
Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity (Refer note 11 2) 3278 28 66 489
Total 731.92 807.47 599.41
Detnils of Security Deposit made to related party which represents the present value off As at As at As at
Bross 31st March, 2022 31s1 March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Coneord Shipping Private Limited 55452 S08.73 354,71
Roserve Enviro Private Limied - - 3524
Detnils of fixed deposits under lien is ny below:
Particulars As at As at Asat
31st March. 2022 31st March, 2021 pril
(a) Fixed deposits placed with company's bankers as securities for iis customers The physical - 489
custody of the fixed denosit is with the customer
(b) Fixed deposit earmarked with bank under lien against bank guarantees issued by the 3278 2377 -
Company
Refer nole 56 Financial instruments - Accounting classifications & fair value measurement
Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at
st March, 2022 st March, 2021
Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provision for tax) (Refer note 12 1) 4004 2247 2247
Total 40.04 22.47 22.47
Above tax assets are net of:
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 st April, 2020
Taxes paid 37774 294 82 294 82
Less: Provision for income tax (337.70) (272 35) (272 35)
Total 40.04 22.47 22.47
Other non-current assels
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March. 2021 1st April. 2020
(Unsecured, considered good)
Capilal advances to other than related parties - considered good (Refer note 13.1) 21399 22507 221 86
Investment in gold (Refer note 13 2) 6673 6673 6673
Balance with govermment authorities 1177 1177 1202
Prepaid expenses 2939 2177 24 65
Total 321.88 325.34 325.26

The Company has entered into an Memorandum of Understanding with Vijayalakshmi Realtors for purchase of land at Survey No. 55, Village Bilalpada, Taluka Vasai admeasuring 17.17
Gunthas for total consideration of Rs 208 71 lakhs Proceedings for transfer of title deed is currently in progress However, the party has received Commencement Certificate (CC) on 13th

June, 2022 from Vasai Virar Municipat Corporation for carrying out a development on the land

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at
31st March. 2021

As at
1st April. 2020

Denls of advance pavment made 1o Vijayalakshin Reahors
i

208 71

205.71

205.71

TV




Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the Balance Sheet (Continued)

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Other non-current assets (Continued)

13.2

Gold is in the personal custody of the directors of the company. The market value as per valuer certificate is as below:

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April. 2020
Market value of gold 356 58 313 50 29978
14 Inventories (Cost or NRV whichever is lower)
Particulars As at As at As at

Jdist March, 2022

31st March, 2021

1st April, 2020

Raw materials (Refer note 14.1 to note 14 3) 6,496.15 6,554.25 6,553 75
Work-in-progress 1,205.40 1,708.33 4,028.68
Finished goods (Refer note 14.3) 1,246 26 59785 1,035.97
Total 8.947.81 8.860.43 11.618.40
141 Haw matetials include stock in frade_ ds both are stocked togethior and poods-in-transit the detnils of which s as below
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March. 2021 1st April. 2020
Goods-in-transit included in raw materials 41 56 179.37 37501
14.2  Mode of Valuation - Refer note no 3.9 of significant accounting policy
14.3 Refer note 28 1 for informalion on hypothecation of inventory
15  Trade receivables
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Unsecured
- Considered good (including related party receivable) (Refer note 54) 10,627 87 11,751.65 13,629 91
- Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 3.167.91 3.138.83 2747 02
Sub-total 13,795.78 14,890.48 16,376.93
'Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) (Refer note 15 2) (3.167 91) (3,138.83) (2,747 02)
Total 10.627.87 11.751.65 13.629.91
15.1 Trade receivables ageing:
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 st April, 2020
Undisputed trade r bles - idered good
- Less (han 6 months 9,684 19 1061227 12,247.18
-6 months - 1 year 529.96 73295 477 43
- 1-2 years 194,08 158 38 451 34
- 2-3 years 74 00 40 56 26013
- More than 3 vears 122,90 164 02 146 59
Sub-total 10.605.13 11,708.18 13,582.67
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
- Less than 6 months 103033 1,183 14 1.077 61
- 6 months - 1 year 45246 448 68 376 65
- 1-2 years 69558 607 65 42563
- 2-3 years 34425 190 4% 190 68
- More than 3 vears 545 65 488 80 459 90
Sub-total 3.068.27 2,918.76 2,530.47
Disputed Trade Receivables — idered good
- Less than 6 months 220 - 011
-6 months - 1 year 225 = 105
- 1-2 years 057 041 272
- 2-3 vears 045 254 3580
- More than 3 vears 1727 4053 756
Sub-fotal 22.74 43.48 47.24
Di d Trade Receivables — idered doubtful
- Less than 6 months 087 - 006
- 6 months - 1 year 302 . 127
- 1-2 years 296 208 1269
- 2-3 vears 237 12 86 167 21
- More than 3 vears 90 42 205.12 3532
Sub-total 99.64 220.06 216.55
Total S . 13.795.78 14,890.48 16,376.93
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the Balance Sheet (Continued)

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15

15.2

15.4

15.5

18

18.1

19.1

Trade receivables (continued)

1. hl

M t of | credit loss e ol trade receiv are as foll

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

As at

31st March, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the vear
Add: Provided during the year
Less: Utilisation during the year

Asat
1st April, 2020

Balance at the end of the year

3,138.83 2,747.02 2,747.02
4270 60748 .
(13 62) (21567 -

3,167.91 3,138.83 2,747.02

There were no receivables due by directors or any of the officers of the company (Refer note 54)

The average credit period ranges from 90 to 120 days depending on the nature of revenue. No inlerest is charged on outstanding trade receivables

The company always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the
debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate, and an assessment of both the

current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Cash in hand 21.24 2013 2065
Balances with banks in current accounts 67.36 9.68 3767
Total 88.60 29.81 58.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Balances with banks:
In current account (earmarked balances for CSR expendilure) 383 - =
In deposit accounts with maturity of less than 3 months* 196.16 181.86 15517
In deposil accounts with maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months* 32294 38776 339 69
Total 522.93 569.62 494.836
*Fixed deposits earmarked with bank under lien against bank guarantees issued by the Company
Loans (Current)
Particulars As at As at
31st March. 2022 31st March, 2021
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Loans to other parties (measured at amortized cost) (Refer note 18.1} 100,00 100 00 =
Loans to emplovee 1593 613 449
Tatal 115.93 106.13 4.49

The loan has been given on 11th August, 2020 for the period of 18 months @ 11% p.a_ for business/corporate general purpose and has been renewed on 11th February, 2022 and is repayable

on demand Interest is receivable on yearly basis

Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits with Banks 1120 1821 19.69
Receivable from banks - which have significant increase in credit risk 1074 1074
Less - Allowance for receivable from bank (Refer note 19.1) = (10.74) (10 74)
Interest receivable from others (Refer note 19.3) 990 424 -
Security deposits (Refer note 19 2 and note 19 3) 112,92 146 58 244 02
Toial 134.02 169.03 263.71
Movement in allowance for doubtful receivable from bank are as follows:
Particulars Asat
Balance at the beginning of the year 1074 1074 1074
Add: Provided during the year - - A
Less: Utilisation during the year (10.74) = =
Balance at the end of the year - 1074 1074
1 | Detuils of Security Deposit made to related party which represent the present value of As at As at As at
S 31st Mareh, 2022 31st Muarch, 2021 1st April, 2020
130001 81 50 4842

;{p it lassifications & falr value measurement
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the Balance Sheet (Continued)

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20

20.1

20.2

20,3

Other current assets

Particulars As at Asat Asat
31st March, 2022 31st March. 2021 1st April, 2020
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Prepaid expenses 75.36 5511 29333
Balance with government authorities 41.06 3694 749 62
Advances for supply of goods and services:
- To related parties (Refer note 20 1) 35753 41.11 13163
- To others - considered good 83191 577,67 499 30
- To others - significant increase in credit risk 5493 1.75 -
! Less - Allowance for doubtful advances (Refer note 20 2) (54 93) (1.75) -
831.91 571.67 499.30
Advance to employees 24 44 1521 45 84
Unbilled revenue (Refer note 20 3) 83087 48277 =
Tota) 2.161.17 1.208.80 1.719.72
Advances for supply of goods and services to related party As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Concord Enviro Systems Limited (formerly known as Concord Enviro Systems Private 141,82
Limiled)
Concord Shipping Private Limited 69.5] 2082 3065
Reva Enviro Systems Private Limited 146.20 20.29 100,98
Movement in the allowance for doubtful advances are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the vear 1.75 - -
Add: Provided during the year 53.18 175 -
Balance at the end of the year 54,93 1,75 -
Unbilled revenue to related party As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April. 2020
Rochem Services Private Limited (formerly known as "Concord Blue Technology Private 145.00 E
Limited")
Roserve Enviro Private Limited 12000 -
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Rochem Separation Systems (Indi) Private Limited
CIN: U24 100MH1991PTC064068

Notes (o the Balance Sheet (Continued)

(Amount in rupces lakhs, unless othenwise staled)

23 Borrowines
Particulars As at As at Asat
3151 March. 2022 31st March. 2021 1st April, 2020
Non-current borrowing
Secured
- Loan from banks (Refer note 235 (a) lo {c)} 55.69 126.41 104.55
- Loan from financial institutions (Refer note 23.5 (d)) 436.30 56130
Unsecured
Liability component of compound fnancial instruments (Refer note 23 | (0 23 4)
-3,25,000 (3,25,000; 3,25,000) 4.5% red bl lative preft shares of Rs.100 cach fully paid 260 .82 239.29 219.53
- 4,000 (4,000, 4,000) 0.001% Optlionally convertible reds blc non lative prelc shares of Rs. 100 cach fully paid 123 13 1.04
0.001% d red ble conyerlible deb of Rs 12 500/- cach (Reler note 23.6 and nolc 54) . 17500 175.00
Tatal 1240 [ UEN K] S0z
23.1 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Particulary As at As at As ul
318t Mareh, 2022 31st March. 2021 1st April, 2020
4.5% redceemable cumulative preference shares
Face value 100 00 100.00 100 00
No. of shares 3.25,000 3.25.000 3.25.000
Amount 325.00 32500 325.00
0.001% Ontionally convertible redeemable non cumulative preference shares
Face value 100.00 100.00 100 .00
No. of shares 4,000 4.000 4,000
Amount 400 400 4,00
Tutul 320,00 329,00 32000
23,2 Reconcilintion of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear
0} 4.5% redeemalile cumulative preference dhinres
Purticulars As at As at As ot
31s¢ March, 2022 318t March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Number ol shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Outstandinge ot the boiinming of the vedr 325000 32500 325 000 32500 JAS000 323 ik
Add Tssued durini the yeor - - - .
Less: Bouohi back during the vear - = - - - -
Dytstonding ot the enil af the vear J.25 M) J25.010 F25 00 31500 A 25000 1500 |
{b) 0.001% Optionally cenvertible redeemable non cumulative nreference shares
Particulars As at
3 st March. 2021
Number of shares Number of shares Amount Amount
Orutsvmncding ot the beann e of the vear A0 4.00 4,000 400 4.000 400
Adhd! lesned duriig the sear = - 2 -+
Less; Moueht back during (he vear - - A B 3 =
0 it il the edd of the vear 4000 4.0 4000 400 ALHH 400
233 Rights, preferences and restrictions atiached to the preference shares
4.5% red b lative prefc shares of Rs 100 cach were issued under the scheme of amangement approved by Nalional Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench under the order dated 2 November 2018 As per the scheme off
1 (onc) 4 5% red bl lative preft sharc of Rs 100 cach, [ully paid up of Rochem Scparation Sysicms (India) Private Limited lo be issucd for every 1 (one) 4.5% redecmable cumulative preference share of Rs. 100 cach
held by the sharcholders of Rochem Services Private Limited (formerly known as "Concord Blue Technology Private Limited") The shares have been redeemed subsequently on 5th May, 2022
0.001% Oplionally Convertible Redcemable Prefercnce Share (OCRPS) of Rs. 100 cach were issued under the scheme of arrangement approved by National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench under the order daled 2 November 2018, As per
the scheme of arrangement, | (onc) U.001% oplionally converlible redeemable preference share of Rs.100 cach of Rochem Scparalion Systems (ludia) Private Limited, [ully paid up to be issued for every | (onc) 0,001% optionally converlible
redeemable preference share of Rs 100 cach held by the sharcholders of Rochem Scrvices Privale Limited (formerly known as "Concord Blue Technology Privale Limited”). 2000 shares are redecmable on 10th August, 2035 and 2000 shares arc
redecmable 28th March, 2036
234 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the compuny und shares held by the helding company, the ultimate holding compuny, their subsidiaries und associates

Name of the shareholder As ut As ot As at
31st March, 2022 31st March. 2021 1st A‘nril. 2020
Number of shares % of holding in the class Number of shares % of holding in (he class Number of shares % of holding in the class

A5% reldecmible C tive  Preference
whares of Rs,100 cach fully paid
Cemeord Enviro Systems Limited (formerly 3,25,000 100%, 3,25,000 100% 3,25,000 100%
knpen as Concord Euviro Systems Private
Limitedd
Total of r bl lative Pref 3,25,000 100% 3,25,000 100% 3,25,000 100%
Shares
0.001% Optionally convertible redlvemahle
non cumulative preference shares of Rs. 1M
cuch fully naid
Concord Enviro Syslems Limited (formerly 4,000 100% 4,000 100% 4,000 100%
known as Concord Enviro Systems Private |
Limited) —

100% 40000 100 4000 100,

Lappl ol non cumulative umlcn:ncg_bfep! 5_
- s
7

“ wing
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Borrowings (Continued)

Terms and conditions of loans from banks and financial institution:

Particulars As at Asat As it
313t March. 2022 31t Murch, 2021 18t April. 2020
(a) Banks
HDFC Bank Limited (Refer note 23 5 (a)) 3577 3328 44 62
ICICI Bank Limited (Refer note 23.5 (b)) 5565 81.77 9787
Bank of India (Refer nole 23.5 (c)) 49 84 21730 .
Sub-total 141.26 332.35 142.49
(b} Finuncial Institution
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer nole 23.5 (d)) 56130 673 63
Sub-total 561.30 673.63 -
Tatul T02.56 L0598 142,49
Particulars As ot As at As at
31st March, 2022 314t March. 2021 1st Apri), 2020
Presented as:
Non-current borrowines (Refer nolc 23) 491.99 68771 104 55
Curren( maturitics of non-currenl borrowines (Refer note 28) 2101.87 31827 3794
Total 702.56 1.005,98 142.49

Loan from HDFC Bank

(i) Pertains Lo vehicle loan taken during FY 2017-]18 which carries inlerest rate of 8 40% per annum It is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments of Rs ) 22 lakhs cach commencing [rom 5th Oclober, 2017 The tenn loan is secured by
hy pothecation of vehicle acquired under the loan

(ii) Pertains (o vehicle loan taken during FY 2018-19 which carrics inlerest rale of 8.85% per annum. It is repayable in 60 cqual monthly instalments of Rs. 0.47 lakhs cach commencing from 7th January, 2019 The (crm loan is sccured by
hypothecation of vehicle acquired under the loan

(iii) Pertains to vehicle loan (aken during FY 2018-19 which carrics inferest rate of 8 85% per aunum. 1t is repayable in 60 equal monthly inslaliments of Rs. 0.54 lakhs cach commencing from 7th January, 2019 The term loan is sccured by
hiypothecalion of vehicle acquired under the loan

(iv) Pertains to vehicle loan taken during FY 2021-22 which carrics inlerest rale of 10% per annum It is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments of Rs. 0 32 lakhs cach commencing from 5th April, 2022. The term loan is secured by hypothccation
of vchicle acquired under the loan

Loan from 1CICI Bank
(1) Pertains Lo vehicle loan taken during FY 2016-17 which carries interest rate of Y 35% per annum. 1t is repayable in 62 cqual monthly instalments of Rs .49 lakhs cach commencing from 15th August, 2016. The term loan is secured by
p pay q y

hypothecation of v chicle acquired under (he loan

(ii} Pertains (o vchicle loan taken during FY 2017-18 which carrics interest rate of B 40% per annum It is repayable in 60 cqual monthly instalments of Rs 0 31 lakhs cach commencing from 5th August, 2017 The term loan is secured by

hy pothecation of v chicle acquired under the loan

(iii) Pertains (o cquipment loan taken during FY 2018-19 which carrics inlerest rate of 9 50% per annum. It is repayable in 35 cqual monthly instalments of Rs. 0 29 lakhs cach commencing from 7th December, 2018 The term loan is sccured by

lypothecation of cquipment acquired under the loan

(iv) Pertains (o cquipment loan laken during FY 2019-20 which carries interest ratc of 8,90% per annum It is repayable in 60 cqual monthly instalments of Rs 1 76 lakhs cach commencing from 10th Oclober, 2019, The lerm loan is sccured by

hypothecation of cquipment acquired under the loan

v) Pertains Lo equipment loan taken during FY 2020-21 which carries interest ratc of 8 00% per annum. It is repayable in 60 cqual monthly instalinents of Rs 0 18 lakhs cach commencing from 5th November, 2020 The lerm loan is sccured by
] P P q y

hy pothecation of equipment acquired under the loan

Lo froms Bundoof Tandin

The Company has taken a loan from Bank of India of Rs 235 00 lakhs under COVID Emergency Support Scheme 2020 (CESS-2020) of Governnent of India Il is repayable in 6 equal monthly instalments of Rs, 590 lakhs , 11 cqual monthly
instalments of Rs 16 64 lakhs and last month instalment of Rs. 16,56 lakhs with irst installment commencing from 31st January, 2021 which carrics intercst rale of 7.35%. The loan is sccurcd by [irst pari passu charge on the current asscls and
office furniture of the Company and equitable morigage on ofTice premiscs, lactory land, building and plant and machinery of the company

Loan from Aditya Birln Finance Limited

The Company has laken a loan from Aditya Birla Finance Limiled of Rs. 691 00 lakhs during the financial ycar 2020-21 1t is repayable in 60} equal monthly instalments of Rs. 1494 lakhs commencing from 1st February, 2021 which carries inicrest
rate of 10.75% per annum. The loan is secured by specific charge on the retention moncy of Rs. 887 36 lakhs fromn specific parties. 80% of the relention mongy received or realised from the specilic parties shall be utilsed for the repayment of the
loan

During the ycar and in the previous year, there was a breach in maintaining one of the fancial covenant, Outslanding amount as al (he ycar-cnd in respect of such borrowing amounted to Rs 561 30 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2022 and Rs 673 63
Lakhs as at 31st March, 2021 Till the date of approval of financial statements by the Board of Directors, the lender has not demanded for any acceleraled repayment of borrowings and the tenn of borrowings were not changed. The company has nol
defaulted in payment of its interest and priucipal that arc duc on borrowings

4001% C Isory converiible deb (CCD) of serics "A" (686 Nos ) and scrics “B" (714 Nos ) al a face value Rs. 12,500/- cach has been issucd by the company during the FY 2016-17 These CCDs shall be converted at a mutually agreed
upon conversion ratio

Bascd on (he resolution passed at the board meeting dated 17th Scptember, 2021 and vide consent Icilers of the holders of such sceurilics, the lerms o 0 001% Compulsory conyverlible debentures of Rs. 12,500/- each has been modificd to 0 001%
Unsceured red bl eriible det of Rs. 12.500/- cach. Such debentures have been redeemed at face valuc on 24th Seplember, 2021

Leasc linbilities (Non-current)

Particulars

Lease liabilities (Refer note 51) 1.883.88 2,88382 3,134.03

Totul 1,883 88 288387 3.134.03

Other financial liabilitics (Nen-current)

Particulars As al Asal
Ist Ty 3 1]
Fair valuc of Finaucial Guarantee Conlracts . 229 505
Tutal - 1,19 45
Provisions (Non-current)
Particulurs As at As nt

Skt March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Provision for emplovee benefits
Provision for graluily (Refer note 50)
Provision for Icave benefit (Refer note 50)

267 46 260 57 21072
7099 94 21 8445

354,78 295.17

Total
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Other non-current ligbilities

Particulars As at Asat As at
A1st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Dcferred income Kability on finance lease 14.68 27.08 4139
Total 14.68 27.08 41.39 |
Borrowings (Current)
Purticulurs As at Asat As at

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

1st April. 2020

Loan repavahle on demand
Secured

Cash credit (acility (Refer note 281 (a) and (b)) 232499 3,756 .82 5,705.14
Bank overdrali (Refer note 28.1(c)) . 9768 146.46
Working capilal demand loan (Refer note 28,1 (a) and (d)) 3.012.78 900.00 518.15
Buyer's credit (Refler note 28 1 (a) and (e)) 346.99 34378 =
Currenl maturilies of non-current borrowings (Refer nole 23.5) 21057 31827 3794
Unsecured

Reccivable factoring (acility (Refer note 28 1([)) - 32670
Total S.895.33 5.416.55 6,734.39

Terms nnd conditions of loans from banks and financial institution:

Sccured by first pari passu charge on (he current assets and office [urniture of the Company and equitable mortgage on office premises, lactory land, building and plant and machinery of the company. The lacililies are sccured by corporale gaurantce
from Concord Enviro Systems Limited (formerly known as Concord Enviro Syslems Private Limiled) and personal guaranicc of Mr. Prayas Goel and Mr. Prerak Gocl

Cash credit facilities from banks carry interest ranging betwoen 9.50% lo 14% p.a., computed on a monthly basis on (he actual amount utilised, and are repayable on demand
The Bank Overdrafl facility [rom "The Saraswat Co-operalise Bank Limited” is taken during the financial year 2017-18  The Overdrall is sccured by hypothecation of factory building al Vasai and Aurangabad property (which is in the name of the

promoter group}

Working capital Demand Loun

(i) Foreign currency working capital demand loan of USD 3.58 lakhs (cquivalent Rs 250 00 lakhs) is taken from ICICI Bank on 8th November, 2019 which carried interest rale 8 55% fixed disbursement per annum has been repaid on 2nd

November, 2020

(ii) Forcign currency working capital demand loan of USD 3 51 lakhs (cquivalent Rs 250 00 lakhs) taken from ICICI Bank on 18(h December, 2019 which carried the interest ralc 6.55% fixed disbursement per annum has been repaid on [8(h

December, 2020
(i

The Company lias laken a working capilal demand loan [rom Standard Chartered Bank of Rs. 300.00 lakhs on 6th March, 2021 which carricd interest ralc 9 90% and has been repaid on 29th May, 2021

(iv) The Company has laken 2 working capital demand loan from 1ICICI Bank of Rs. 300 00 lakhs on 15th March, 2021 which carricd inlerest rate @ 3-month IMCLR+spread 2.65% cach and has been repaid on 3rd June, 2021
(v) The Company has Laken a working capital demand loan from ICICI Bank of Rs. 300,00 lakhs on 15th March, 202} which camied interest ralc @ 3-month IMCLR+spread 2,65% each and has been repaid on 10th June, 2021
(vi) The Company has laken a foreign currency working capital demand loan from IDFC first Bank of USD 5.37 lakhs (equivalent Rs. 400.00 lakhs) on 211h January, 2022 which carries inlerest rate 3 50% and is repayable on 20th July. 2022

(vii} The Company has taken a forcign currency working capital demand loan l’rom IDFC first Bank of USD 5 33 lakhs (equivalent Rs. 400 00 lakhs) on 28th January, 2022 which carrics interest rate 3 60% and is repayable on 27 July, 2022

(viii) The Company has taken a working capital demand loan from Indusind Bank of Rs, 450 00 lakhs on 10th February, 20122 which carrics interest ralc 8 30% and is repayable on 9 August, 2022
(ix) The Company has laken a working capilal demand loan from Indusind Bank of Rs 250 00 lakhs en | 6th February, 2022 which carrics interest rate & 101% and is repayablc on 12(h August, 2022
(x) The Company has laken a foreign currency working capital demand loan from Slandard Charicred Bank of USD 6,70 lakhs (cquivalent Rs. 506 14 lakhs) on 23rd March, 2022 which carrics interesl rale (¢ 2 24% and is repayable on 19th

Augusl, 2022

(xi) The Company has taken a foreign currency working capital demand loan from Standard Chartered Bank of USD 6 70 lakhs (cquivalent Rs 506 64 lakhs) on 28th March, 2022 which carrics interest rate 2 30% and is repayable on 25(h August,

2022

(xii) Thc Company has taken a working capilal demand loan (rom Induslnd Bank of Rs. 500 00 lakhs on 24 March, 2022 which carries interes! rate 7 95% rcpayable on 20(h Seplember, 2022

Buyer's credil facilities from banks carry intercst ralc at applicable USD LIBOR plus margin (rales arc specificed at the time of offer). Principal amount alongwith interest arc payable on the date of maturity.

Reccivable factoring facility from Avendus Finance Private Limited

Receivable lactoring facility from Avendus Finance Private Limited is taken during the year 2019-20 which carries interes( rate at applicable HDFC MCLR plus margin @ 5.30% per annum has been repaid during the linancial ycar 2020-21. The
Tacility was secured by corporate gauranice from Concord Enviro Systems Limited (formerly known as Concord Envira Sysiems Private Limiled) and personal guarantee of Mr Prayas Goel and Mr. Prerak Goel

itics (Current)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2022

Lease liabilities (Reler nole 51) 997 62 992 08 687 27
[ Total 947,62 Y0208 66727 |

Trade pavubles

Particulars As at Asat
st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Tolal oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Reler note 30 1) 80204 47739 25123
Tolal outstanding ducs of credilors other than micro enterpriscs and small enterprises (for related partics, refer nole 54) 7,788 15 949328 12,388 80
Totul #5001 DUNLET 12,640,103

The amount duc o Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Desclopment Act (MSMED Act), 2006 has been determined Lo the extent such partics have been iden

The discl relating to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises is as under:

imflormation d by the

tified on (lie basis of’

Particulars

As at
3131 March, 2022

As at
31at Murch, 2021

Asat
1at April. 2026

[hiies remaining unpaid at the year end:

{21 The principle amount remaining unpaid 1o supplier as at the end of the accounting ycar

{11 The interest thereon remaining, unpaid to supplicr as at the end of the accounting year

{¢) the amount of interest due and payable (or the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond ihic appointed day during the
year) bul without adding the inlerest specified wnder the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developinent Act, 2006; ycar

f""'-‘. ,

‘hm;ﬁ w"tnl{nm paid in lerms of Seclion 16, along wilh (he amount of payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day dyniis- |!\¢ i
Ehmwm DF:nl'Tca Lo

d and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounling vear
() the amount of fur] c@y cs1 remaining due and payable even in the succeeding ycar, until such date when the interest ducs uly
paid

yneatl

(/1 pflu.ull\ .

79450
754
il

145

7.54
Nl

47594
145
Nil

126

145
Nil

24997
126
Nil

092

126
Nil
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o Trade payables (Continucd)

30.2 Trade payunble ngeing schedule for the year ended

Particulars

Ay al
315t March. 2022

As at
313t March, 2021

As at
1st April, 2020

Totnl outstunding dues of micro, ymall & medium enterprises - Undisputed

Less than | year
1-2 years

2-3 vears

Morc than 3 years
Sub-total

Taotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro, small & medium enterprises - Undisputed

Less than | year
1-2 years

2-3 years

Morc (han 3 years
Suh-total

Total

793.29 47739 251.23
348 . -
441 .

086 - -

802.04 477.39 251.23

6.930.77 8.527.45 12,173 21

35894 77750 13024

387 64 12738 3034

11080 60 95 55.0]

7.788.15 9,493.28 12,388.80
8.590.19 9,970.67 12,640.03

30.3  Trade payables principally comprise amounts outsianding for opcrational activitics. The average credit period taken is 90 days For most supplicrs, no interest is charged on the trade payables, The Company has linancial risk management policies in

place (o ensure thal all payables arc paid within the pre - agreed lerms
304  Dispuled trade payables arc Rs Nil

3 Other Current Financial Liabilities

Particulars As nt As at As ot
31t March, 2022 315t March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Sccurily deposits [rom customers 39.00 46.10 101.70
Trade deposits received from suppliers 155.00 45.00 45 00
Interest accrued but not duc 4150 2887 4379
Financial liability at fair value through profil or loss (derivativc) 491 218 -
Creditors lor capital goods (for related parties, refer note 54) 143 154 1563
Fair valuc of Financial Guarantee Confracls 3.82 276 970
Tutal 45,00 136,45 21542
32 Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for Emplovee Benefits
Provision for graluity (Reler note 50) 9792 11847 11458
Provision for leave benefil (Refer nolc 50) 13.79 1819 20.68
1.7 136.66 135.26
Other provisions
Provision against regulatory liability (Refer note 32 1 and 32 2) 63.00 50.00 5000
Total 174.71 156,06 185.26 |

321 The company has made the provision for the compounding lecs payable bascd on the application [iled under scelion 441 of the Companics Act, 2013 for non-compliance with Scclion 185 of the Companics Act, 2013 for the financial ycar 2014-15

and 2015-16

32.2 Movement in the provision against regulntory liability:

Particulars As at Agat As at
31st March, 2022 31xt March, 2021 1st Anril, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the vear 5000 50.00 5000
Add: Provided during the year = . -
Less: Reversal during the ycar - - -
Less: Utilisation during, the year E i .
Balance al the end of the year 5000 50 00 50.00
a3 Contract liabilitics (Current)
Particulars As at As at As al
31st Murch, 2022 3tst March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Advances received from customers (Refer nole 33 1) 52221 81158 2,323 00
Taotul 52271 Rl1LSH 2.323.00 |
331 Movement of contract liabilities
Particulars As at Asat As at
Jiw March, 2022
Amounts included in contract liability as at (he beginning of the year 81158 2.323.00 789.94
Amout received (adjusted) / Performance obligation satisfied during (he ycar (289 37\ (151142 153306
Amounts included in contract liability as at the end of the ycar 522.21 811.58 2,323.00

&
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Current tax liabilitics {net)

Particulars Asat Asat As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for income Lax (net of lax paid) 12197 13292 298 28
Total 121.97 132.92 298,28
Current tax pavable includes:
Particulars As at As at Asal
31st March, 2022 3131 March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Provision for tax 1.185.19 1.459 19 1.121.49
Less: Tax paid (1.063,22) (132627 (823 21)
Tutal 121,97 132,92 29K.74
Other current linbilities (Current)
Particulars As at As at As at
31at Mireh, 2022 315t March, 2021 1s¢ April. 2020
Statutory dues payable 45648 25217 109.81
Deferred income liability on finence lease 12.40 1431 1642
Total 468.88 266.44 126.23
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36 Revenue from operations

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Sale of goods
Sale of goods 19,057.78 18,909.92
Sale of services 8,768.15 9,446.24
Lease rental income 420.04 352.23
Sub-total (A) 28,245.97 28,708.39
Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue 75.22 51.03
Sub-total (B) 75.22 51.03
Total (A+B) 28,321.19 28,759.42
36.1 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115: Revenue from contract with customers
(a) Disaggregated revenue Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Revenue by geographical market
Within India 25,677.24 25,575.58
Outside India 2,643.95 3,183.84
Total 28,321.19 28,759.42
(b) Contract Balances
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Trade receivable (Refer note 15 ) 10,627.87 11,751.65
Contract liabilities (Refer note 33) (522.21) (811.58)
Total 10,105.66 10,940.07
(¢) Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Goods or services transferred at a point in time 19,133.00 18,960.95
Goods or services transferred over the period of time 9,188.19 9,798.47
Total 28,321.19 28,759.42

(d) Performance obligations

Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

1. Manufacturing and installation of RO plants [RO plants / High Pressure RO plants / Desalination RO plants].

2. Supply of spares required for maintaining RO plants as per the contract or purchase order.

3. Operation and Maintenance services (including supervision service), technical consultancy and design services and manpower management

services as per the contract or purchase order,
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Other income

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest income
Financial instruments measured at amortised cost
- Fixed deposits with banks 29.29 31.79
- Others 78.16 86.25
Dividend income
Dividends received from equity investments designated as at FVTPL
- Relating to investments held at the end of the reporting year 0.05 -
Foreign currency exchange gain (Net) - 146.00
Duty drawback refund 34.68 241.54
Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.05 -
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required 78.46 65.41
Gain on derecognition of leases 53.20 -
Miscellaneous income 11.81 26.39
Total 285.70 597.38
Cost of raw materials and components consumed
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening 6,554.25 6,553.75
Add: Purchases (including direct expenses in nature of consumables, freight inwards and 13,407.26 12,997.92
clearing & forwarding charges)
Less: Closing 6,496.15 6,554.25
Total 13,465.36 12,997.42
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1,680.33 1,027.06
Total 1,680.33 1,027.06
Increase / (decrease) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Opening Balance
Finished goods 597.85 1,035.97
Work in progress 1,708.33 4,028.68
2,306.18 5,064.65
Less: Closing Balance
Finished goods 1,246.26 597.85
Work in progress 1,205.40 1,708.33
2,451.66 2,306.18
Total A (145.48) 2,758.47
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Employee benefits expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,960.80 3,192.00
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer note 50) 173.62 231.65
Gratuity expense (Refer note 50) 57.60 61.36
Staff welfare expenses 55.71 33.42
Total 3,247.73 3,518.43
Finance costs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest expenses on

- loan and advances from related parties (Refer note 54) 87.27 127.06

- vehicle loan 8.39 11.41

- working capital loan 391.61 549.16

- lease liabilities* 491.22 552.50

- letter of credit discounting 47.59 89.85

- statutory dues 39.79 52.69

- term loans 65.98 30.23
' - Unwinding of present value of redemption amount in respect of financial instrument 21.64 19.85
classified as financial liability (Refer note 54)

- others 18.35 5.15
Other borrowing charges 63.40 27.69
Net gains/(losses) on fair value changes

- Derivatives classified at fair value through profit or loss 2.72 2.18
Total 1,237.96 1,467.77
*includes interest on lease liabilities to related parties
Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 4) 555.54 590.25
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Refer note 9) 1,068.30 1,029.99
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Refer note 7) 2537 3235
Total 1,649.21 1,652.59
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44  Other expenses

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Power and fuel 36.44 24.60
Freight, clearing and forwarding 455.81 425.18
Lease rent and Licence Fees 135.50 42445
Repairs & maintenance expenses
- Others 89.95 114.69
Insurance 29.32 37.95
Rates and taxes 97.08 53.87
Travelling expenses 458.59 347.18
Legal and professional fees 640.21 474.67
Payments to auditors (refer note 44.1) 22.87 17.75
Sales commission 415.10 495.48
Advertisement and sales promotion 5.54 1.43
Bank charges 90.39 88.32
Telephone and communication charges 12.18 12.73
Printing & Stationery 19.18 12.96
Service Charges 3,085.43 1,783.48
Liquidated damages 8.30 15.62
Foreign currency exchange loss (Net) 134.25 (0.01)
Vehicle expenses 23.53 21.66
Bad debts written off 293.43 1.12
Sundry debit balance written off 51.94 137.43
Net impairment losses on financial assets 42.70 607.48
Provision for doubtful advances 53.18 1.75
Contribution under corporate social responsibility (Refer note 52) 64.54 3.00
Information technology expenses 83.76 63.04
Research and development expenses 8.77 23.14
Miscellaneous expenses 109.92 125.54
Total 6,467.91 5,314.51
44.1 The following is the break-up of payments to auditors (excluding taxes, if any)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Payments to auditors

- For audit services 21.00 16.00
- For other services 1.87 1.75
- For reimbursement of expenses - -
Total 22.87 17.75
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Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the Balance Sheet (Continued)

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

45 Income taxes (continued)

45.3 Movements in Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Movements during the year ended
31st March, 2022

Opening balance

Increase / (decrease)
recognised
in profit and loss

Closing balance

Provision for employee Benefits
Expected credit loss

Provision for doubtful advances
Derivative Financial Instrument
Unbilled revenue

Others

Property Plant and Equipment
Right-of-use assets

Compound financial instruments

Total

123.69 (10.39) 113.30
789.98 7.32 797.30
3.14 10.68 13.82
0.55 0.69 1.24
17.69 12.87 30.56
(579.74) 73.74 (506.00)
(70.77) (9.29) (80.06)
(22.29) 5.44 (16.85)
262.25 91.06 353.31

Movements during the year ended
31st March, 2021

Opening balance

Increase / (decrease)
recognised
in profit and loss

Closing balance

Provision for employee Benefits 108.33 1536 123.69
Expected credit loss 691.37 98.61 789.98
Provision for doubtful advances 2.70 0.44 3.14
Derivative Financial Instrument - 0.55 0.55
Others 27.72 (10.03) 17.69
Property Plant and Equipment (486.71) (93.03) (579.74)
Right-of-use assets (75.95) 5.18 (70.77)
Compound financial instruments (27.29) 5.00 (22.29)
Total 240.17 22.08 262.25
SKins o
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Notes to the financial statements
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47

47.1

48

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the foltowing data

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Computation of basic earning per share (face value Rs 100)
Net Profit after Tax attributable to equity shareholders 761,93 304,93
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Basic EPS 0.50 0.50
Basic earning per share (face value Rs 100) 1,523.77 609.83
Computation of diluted earning per share (face value Rs 100)
Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 761.93 304.93
Add: Impact of interest expense on compound financial instruments and tax thereon 0.07 0.07
Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders 762.00 305.00
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used as denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 0.54 0.54
Diluted earning per share (face value Rs 100) 1,411.04 564.79

Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing water treatment systems, water pollution control equipment, bio filters and resource recovery systems using membrane

technology. The Company caters to both domestic and international markets.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Segments

Year ended
31st March, 2022

Year ended
31st March, 2021

Segment Revenue

Within India
Outside India
Total

25,677.24 25,575.58
2.643,95 3.183.84
28,321.19 28,759.42

Non-current assets (Property, plant and equi

t, Intangible assets, other non-current assets (non-financial)) bv g

eographic area:

Segments As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Within India 7,645 26 9,12008
Revenue from customers exceeding 10% of total revenue for the year ended:
Particulars ik ABRE
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Number of Customer {Nos)* Nil 1
Amount - 2.944 66
* Pertains to sales to related parties (Refer note 54)
Contingent liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
(I} Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt (Refer note (i) below)
(a) Sales Tax/VAT 4426 56.29 56.29
(b) Service tax 103.71 - -
(¢) Income tax 13.28 59.83 47.11
(d) Customs 1.06 1.06 1.06
(II) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees
(a) Bank guarantee 1,718.29 2,123.35 2,115.35
(b) Corporate guarantee given to a bank/ financial institutions in respect of credit facilities 382.15 782.10 1,474 36
availed by related parties
%t\
Total GRS 2.262.75 3.022.63 3,694.17
oy ’ s \%\
%}/ L LL )’.'. |
5 Jou
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Notes to the financial statements

(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(iii)

(iv)
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50

50.1

50.2

Contingent liabilities (Continued)
Note:

In respect of point (I) above, future cash outflows (including interest/ penalty, if any) are determinable on receipt of judgement from tax authorities / settlement of claims.
Further, the Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above

The Company has a process whereby periodically all long term contracts (including derivative contracts) are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the
Company has reviewed and ensured that there are no material foreseeable losses

The Company is subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s management does not reasonably expect
that these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial condition,

The Company had entered into a concession agreement dated November 18, 2010 with the Pune Municipal Corporation pursuant to which it was required to set up a
waste to electricity plant (“WTE Plant”),

This business was transferred by the Company to Rochem Green Energy Private Limited (RGEPL) vide an agreement of transfer dated July 7, 2011
On applications filed by three applicants with the National Green Tribunal (NGT), NGT appointed a committee to investigate this matter and the committee in its order dated
November 29, 2021

observed various non-compliances and environmental hazards caused by the operations of the Comnpany

The NGT issued an order dated March 3, 2022, in which it upheld the recommendations of the Committee and imposed a fine of Rs. 1,249.88 lakhs on Rochem Green Energy
Private Limited.

Thereafter, the Maharashtra Pollution Control Board vide its notice dated March 25, 2022 requested RGEPL to deposit the said fine amount of Rs. 1,249.88 [akhs within 30 days.
Against the NGT order dated March 3, 2022, the Company filed an appeal dated April 6, 2022 under section 22 of the National Green Tribunal Act, 2010 before the Supreme
Court of India challenging the said order , which has been admitted by the Supreme Court on 29th April 2022, The Supreme Court has also put a stay on the recovery of the
demand.

The Company in this appeal has also requested that the application with NGT had been filed in the wrong name / wrong entity and requested for removal of its name from the

case,

The matter is currently pending

Commitments

As at
1st April. 2020

As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) - - 163,71

and not provided for

Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 *Employee Benefits’
Defined Contribution Plans

(a) The Company has certain defined contribution plans, The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual obligation
Following is the details regarding Company's contributions made during the year:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Employers’ contribution to provident fund (Refer note 41) 148.96 191.76
Employers’ contribution to ESIC (Refer note 41) 12,25 28.71
Others (Refer note 41) 12.41 11.18
Total 173.62 231.65

Defined benefit plans

ted leave ab: es

(a) Comp

The Compensated leave absences benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan and is wholly unfunded. Hence, there are no plan assets attributable to the obligation. The long term

employee benefits in the form of compensated leave absences have been determined using the projected unit credit method as at the balance date on the basis of actuarial

valuation

The leave wapes are payable to all eligible employees at the rate of daily salary for each day of accumulated leave on death or on resignation or upon retitement on attaining

superannuation age,

Following amounts are recognised in respect of unfunded obligation towards compensated leave absences-

Particulars

Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

Non-current 70.99 94,21 r»_'_'-‘
Current 13.79 18.19
Total 84.78 112.40
Amount recognised in salary and other benefits in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect 6,95 10.65

of compensated leave liability.

&/
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Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. The Company has covered its gratuity liability by a Group Gratuity Policy named ‘Employee Group Gratuity
Assurance Scheme’ issued by LIC of India. which is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, every employee who has completed five years of service is
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the employee’s length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five

years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn) for each completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such Group is exposed to various risks as follows:

Interest rate risk

A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the Government Security rate will increase the present value of the
liability requiring higher provision.

Salary inflation risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of]
members As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's
liability.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on govemnment bonds. If the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of|
investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

Asset liability matching risk

The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cashflow. Entity has to manage pay-out based on pay as you go
basis from own funds.

Mortality risk

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for lifetime and payable till retirement age only, plan does not
have any longevity risk.

For determination of the liability in respect of compensated gratuity, the Company has used following actuarial assumptions:

i) Actoarial assumptions

Mortality Rate During Employment

For service 3 years to 4
years 15.00% p.a.
For service 5 years and
above 6.00% p.a.
Indian Assured Lives
Mortality 2012-14
(Urban)#

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Discount rate (per annum) 6.96% 6.33%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 6.96% 6.33%
Rate of increase in salary (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate For service 2 years and For service 2 years and
below 20.00% p.a below 20.00% p.a.

For service 3 years to 4
years 15.00% p.a
For service 5 years and

above 6,00% n.a
Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimate*

* Extract of Mortality Rate (Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ultimate):

Age Rate
18 0.000800
25 0000984
35 0.001282
45 0.002874
55 0.007888
65 0.017009

# Extract of Mortality Rate (India Assured Lives Mortality (2012-2014) Urban):

Age Rate
18 0.000675
25 0.000941
35 0.001253
45 0.002688
55 0.006576
65 0.013526
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Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (Continued)
(b) Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded) (Continued)

ii) Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 432.50 383.07
Interest cost 23.72 23.14
Current service cost 37.26 41.71
Liability Transferred In/Acquisitions 0.34 -
(Liability Transferred Qut/Divestments) (58.16) -
Benefits directly paid by employer (2.38) (7.48)
Benefits paid from fund (18.84) (8.03)
Actuariat (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to change in Demographic Assumptions (0.17) ]
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to change in Financial Assumptions (17.58) (9.53)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations - Due to experience 6.R5 9.62
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 403.54 432.50
iii) Change in the fair value of plan assets:
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Onening fair value of plan assets 53.46 57.77
Benefits paid (18.84) (8.03)
Interest Income 3.38 3.49
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 0.16 0.23
Closing fair value of plan assets 38.16 53.46
iv) Expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Current service cost 37.26 41.71
Interest cost 20.34 19.65
Total expenses recognized in the Statement Profit and Loss 57.60 61.36
v) Expense recognized in Other comprehensive income
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Actuarial (pain) / loss on Obligation for the year (10.90) 0.10
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.16) {0.23)
[Net actuarial (gains) / losses recognised in OC1 (11.06) {0,13)
vi) Assets and linbilities recognized in the Balance Sheet:
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 403.54 432.50
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year (38.16) (53.46)
Funded Status Deficit / (Surplus) 365.38 379.04
Net liability / (asset) recognized in Balance Sheet 365,38 379.04
vii) Expected contribution to the fund in the next year
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Gratuity 97.92 118.47
viii) Sensitivity analysis of benefit obligation (Gratuity)
Impact on defined benefit obligation As at As at

31st March, 2022

31st March, 2021

a) Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) [mpact due to increase of 1,00%
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00%

b) Impact of change in salary growth
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1,00%
b) Impact due to decrease of 1.00%

¢) Impact of change in withdrawal rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) withdrawal rate Inciease P LA
b) withdrawal rate decrease {

(25.28)
28.57

27.31
(24.57)

3.72
(4.15)

(30.19)
34.50

327N
(29.28)

272
(3.13)

&
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Disclosure relating to employee benefits as per Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (Continued)

(b) Defined benefit obligations - Gratuity (funded) (Continued)

ix) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Expected Outgo First 32,88 29.09
Expected Outgo Second 30.40 31.12
Expected Outgo Third 35,03 33.44
Expected Outgo Fourth 60.40 38.88
Expected Outgo Fifth 47.57 62.26
Expected Outgo Six to Ten years 163.65 170.89
Expected Outgo 11 years and above 345.22 404.39

Leases

The Company has entered into agreements for taking on lease the plant & machineries and offices on lease and license basis. The lease term is for a period of 1 yr to 6 years, on
fixed rental basis with escalation clauses in the lease agreement. The carrying value of right-of-use assets is as under

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Carrving value of right-of-use assets at the end vear (Refer Note 9) 3,408.04 4.408.52 438427
Movement of lease liabilities
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Balance at the beginning 3.875.90 3.821.30 1,165.66
Additions during the year 474 .04 1.001.44 2.655.64
Finance cost accrued during the vear 491,22 552.50 -
Pavment of lease liabilities during the vear (1,505.34) (1,499.34) -
Deletions during the vear (454.32) - -
Balance at the end 2.881.50 3,875.90 3,821.30
Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments analysed as under:
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Less than 1 vear 1,322.01 1458 42 1.150.68
Between 1-5 vears 2,176.52 351084 3.799.10
More than 5 vears = = 212.42
Lease liabilities included in the balance sheet
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
997.62 992.08 68727
1,883 88 2.883.82 3,134.03
Amount recognised in profit and loss
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Interest expense on lease liabilities 491.22 552,50
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 43) 1,068.30 1,029 99
Expenses relating to short-term leases 118.25 342.63
Expenses relating fo leases of low value assets* 26.02 30.15
Gain from sale and leaseback 10.73 16.42
* includes hiring charges of Rs,10.30 lakhs ((31st March, 2021: 11,88 lakhs)
Amount recognised in the statement of cash flow
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
Pavment of lease liabilities during the vear 1,014.12 946.84
Finance cost paid during the vear 491,22 552.50
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
Commitments towards the short-term leases - 5337 342 63
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52 Disclosures of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure in line with the requirement of Guidance Note on “Accounting for Expenditure on Corporate Social
Responsibility Activities”

As per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition,
promoting education, art, culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation and rural development projects,

Particulars . —

31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021
(i) Amount required to be spent during the year 25.89 27.89
(ii) CSR expenditure incurred during the year -
(a) Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
(b) On purpose other than (a) above* 113.96 3.00
(iii) Shortfall at the end of year - 24.89
(iv) Total of Previous years shortfall - 88.02
(v) Reason for Shortfall Not applicable Non-identification of

eligible projects for CSR

(vi) Related party transaction as per Ind AS 24 in relation to CSR expenditure - ]
(vii) Where provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a - =
contractual obligation, the movement in the provision during the year
(viii) Nature of CSR activities :

(a) Protection of flora and fauna - 3.00
(b) Promoting health care including preventinve health care etc 113.96

*Includes amount kept with bank on current account earmarked for CSR expenditure (Refer note 17)

(a) CSR amount required to be spent by the company as per section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule VII thereof during the year i.e 2% of the last 3
years preceding net profits which comes to Rs 25.89 lakhs.

(b) Expenditure relating to Corporate Social Responsibility is Rs 113.96 lakhs

(c) The compnay has spent excess amount towards the CSR activities than the required obligation of 2% for the financial year 2021-2022.

%




1202 “YOTeN ISTE PU TZOT “YOIBIAl ISTE PApUL Ieak oY) J0J JeoA-uo-redk Surpj

....Hmrm

omom qudy 1S pue [Z0T ‘YOI ISTE POpUS JedK o] 10] JedA-u0-Ieak SUIP[Oy AIOJUSAUT U} UI 9SBIID3P JUBSHIUSIS 9U) umcﬁma b
T2AUl 9} Ul 3SBIDUI 0] NP AJUIRW JedA 9y I0] s31joid TeaA-U0-IBIA Ul 9SBIOW JO Junodde uo st juswarordun ayy - (94) 1yoid JoN
*SIOPU9A 31} 0} SioAed oY) Ul 2SBIISUI Y JO JUNOIIE UO ST Juswiaaordui 1y T, - onyer 1aoumy, djqeied apery

0702 ‘1udy 1S pue 1Z0T USTBN ISTE PAPUS Jeak 9y) I0] JedA-uo-1eak SUIPIoY AI0JUSAUT Y] UI SSBIIDSP JUROYIUSIS oy Jsurede (707
YOTRIA] IS] € PUR ZZOZ “UOTRIA IS| € PAPUS 183K oY) 10§ Jedk-uo-1eak Sulpjoy AIOJUsAUl ) U 958AI0Ul 0} anp A[Urew Feak oy 10§ S)yoid I1BoA-U0-Tedk Ul 3SBaIdUL JO JUNODJE UO ST juswdAordwi 3y, - (%) Aunby uo wmay m

SOnEY Ul 9,S7 UBY) 10U JO ISUBYD 10J UOSBAI U0 JON  7°€S
‘((3asse xe [, panaga(q) - (192 [810L) + (NOY 1d99x2) s)asse 9[qI3ueIul SIPNJOXS SIWI|IGRI] [B10) PUB JOSSE [E10] SIPNJIUT) YHOM 19N J[qISUB] _ %o%o_gEm_ rende)
SANI[IqRI] JUSLNY) - J3SSY JUdLN)) - w,_S._%u Suppom
[2potl sSO[ IPaI1o pajoadxs
1opun pastuS09a1 sso] JusuLITEdW] PUE JJO USHUA SIGRP Peq ‘safewuep pajepinbr ‘suonemony s3uetoxs USIalo) uo s JON ‘SIoBNU0d SFUEOX PIEMIO] UO WNIWAIA JO UONESILIOUTY SAPNJOUl dsusdx [EUOHON JO N
*$S91501d-UI-){I0M PUB SPOOS PIYSIULJ JO SILIOJUSAUL Ul (ISBIIIOP)/2SBIIOU] PUB IPEI) UI )903S JO aseyoind ‘pawnsuod s)usuoduiod pue S[ELISJBUW MEI JO 3S00) - %voow Jo1so)
‘A)[Iqer] 9SB9] PUuR 21Musqap ‘Suimolroq Jo jusuikedal ediourld + 1500) 9oueUl] - (9IAL55 199(T
"1S00) 20Ul ] + UoneIdaIda(y + xe) Iaye jyoxd - OO1AI3S 1Q3P 10] S[qE]IRAR SSUIUIEH
‘Sumodiog Juaum)) UoN + (sSurmolioq uug) Suof Jo Apunjew JuaLmd Surpnjour) sSUIMOLIO] JudLn)) - 292 [e0L
soxe)
VIN %69°L €10 $1°0 pakordwd feyded)| pue ysorsyur s10yeq Surureg pakojduus [endes uo umay (1)
mzes YvL ECT %1 %t SUOLIRISCO WO SMUSASY Xe] 13ye 11joId 19N (%) 1301d 30N (1)
V/N %0$°S1- 009 LOS LSES Suniom | suonerado woxy snueAdy onel 1A0uny [endes 19N ()
(saskordura ( momcoaxm
01 o[qeAed sonp Surpnjoxa)| [euonoN Jo oN) sasuadxa
s o%b7 8€ oLl [ d sojqeAed spen a3e1oAy | puR JELISJRW JO SISEYOINJ onjel aaown, ojqeAed spei] (5)
V/N %Sy 11 17T ST SO[(EAIS09] OpE]] 95EISAY | SUONEISdO WO SNUIASY Oljel1 ISAOWIN ], 9[qBAIS0AI 3pRI] (J)
V/N %606 $S°1 89°1 K1ojusaur o3e1oAy ,SP003 30 1500 oley 1oa0wn |, A10jusAuy (3)
wzes %S9'LEL %16C %169 AJInDb3 §,15P|0YRIEYS SFEIPAY Xe) JoYe 1Jo4d 19N (%) Apnbg uo wmay (p)
JERITNER
V/N %6Z7T €1 €1 ¢OIAIS 1G3(J | 3qap 10§ S[qefiRAR STuILIRy onjeI 9512400 9914108 399(T (9)
VN %T6'7 19°0 860 Aymbs s 1opjoyoreys P92d 1BI0L oney Anbg 1927 ()
V/N %lL'Y LTl £l SOI[IQEI] JusLIny) Sjesse JuaLny Oljel JuaLIny) ()
sopey ul %<ET 0T "PIBN y ¢
uBy} 210W Jo 23UBYd | 0) [ZOT ‘YIIBIA 1202 "WIBN ISTE 20T "WIENISTE J10)eUlmoud(f JojesauminN sig[roneg
10J WOSEJI WO AJON | [€ Wwody dSueyd oy, L eV )
:ABIA JIIIEI SIA € SIA SONBI Ul JJURYD pUE SOYRY  [°€S

opey [eRUBMY £

(pare1s as1mIaYO SSI[UN “SYPe] SadI ul Junoury)
S}UIUIA)E)S [RIDUEBHIJ IY) 0) SAON
8907900 1Ld 166 THWO001HZN :NIO

paywry aeald (eipuj) swa)sAg uonetedas udyIoy



/ i l\mﬂ,fw_-\
2

/./W lenHlm‘ w
st

(Joy0211(T QUIIT, S[OYM) [90D Ne1d1d TN
(1030011(] SurSeue]y) [205) seAeld TN Puuostad [BLRSeTRM £3)] A

PRI SjeAL] JomOd JejoS Ajugu]
payunry ajeAl £81au7 ULAIC) WAYD0Y

payun| aeauy Surddiyg prosuo) (SUOPESURY AIE 21O} 2IIYM) IDUIN[JUI
POVWI'] 91BALL] BIPU] WSYOOY JuRIILSIS 3SIII9X3 0) I|qE §1 Puuosiad [eudSeuem £ PIQM 1940 sosudinyuy| AL
PO OJEALL] ONAUG SAISS0Y (SuUOPIBSUEL} A1E 2197 219 M) 10.)u0d Jutof seq Juased gorgm 1940 AJuug| 111
qZ4 Wauneal] 2 SUpel] I9jep ong
474 onaug piouo))

PONWIT SBALL] SWRISAS ONATH BASY

(. payur] SEALd ABo[ouyoa], anjg
PI05UOY),, SB UMOW] A[19ULIOY) PSIUIL 9IBALL] SIINAIIG TIAYO0Y (SuOYIBSUEI) 91€ IDTJ) SIIYM) SILIRIPISQNS MO[[d ] 11

(poNun] S1BALJ SWSISAS ONATT
PIOSUOY) SB UMOWY AJISULIO)) PAJTUI] SWRISAS ONAUF PIOIUOD) £yud yuared 1

sopued pajejar Jo sameN  [pS

saInso[sIp Aaed pajePy S

(PaB)S 9SLMIB)O SSA[UM “SIPTR] S9odIU UI JUNoWy)
(penuyuo)) SHUIWI)B)S [BIDUEBUL) Y} 0} SIYON

890¥900Ld 166 THNOOTHZ(] ‘NIO
pajymyy djeAnd (e1pu]) swaysig uoneredag waydoy



000 100 [P0L) Jedald -
000 €00 [0D) seAeld -
v ot 6798 PN SjeALl OIIAUY SAISSOY -
(PoNWITT 9JeALL] SWSISAS OJIAUF PIOOUC))
90 $6°0 SB uMOowy| A[JouLIO)) PINWT SWRJSAS OJAUF PIOIUOD) - sasuadxy )s313)u]
0L'6 S0'S Pl djeAl] AZ19uy U991 WAYd0Y - (p p) 2suadx?d woissImWOd 3djuelens dyeiodio)) - sISUIdXd SNOUD[JIISIA]
0L'6 S0 pauuIT S)BAL] ASIoU5 USAIL) WaYdoy - (pawWw33p) dWOdU UOISSILUIUICD 3d)ukaend jeaod10)) - IWOIUI SNOUI]IISIIA]
S9€T0l S8IE0T PAMUIT SJBALL] OIAUY SAISS0Y - (911 SYPuI
Z1'18C ZriLe pajury 9jeAld Suiddys pIosuo)) -| sapan Ised] Sunesddo se pajunodde s)asse 1oy pied s[epual Smipnpm) sasuadxy Jusy
(PaWIT SJBALL] SWSISAS OIAUL pIOJUO))
- 00 01T SB UMOT A[JSULIOY) PI)NUY] SWIISAS OJAUT PIOOUOD) - $3D1AI3S USISIP pue AJUB)[NSUOD [EIUYII ],
= 8O el ¢ PIIILIC] JEALL] SOOIAIIS WaGo0y ~
S0yl 86 VL1 Pajuu] 9TRALL] BIPUT WISYIOY ~ $33IRYD INOQE] PUR IDIAIIG
SLELO 165651 DIITUII'| 9JBALL] OIIAUY 9AJISOY -
* 00°s¥1 PRI SJBALL] SIDAISS WAYDIOY -
99 ¥¥6°'T Th'8€S°T 74 onAug pI0duo - 9DIATAG J0 SPOOS Jo J[ES
L6 z PAUIT] 9JeAllJ JomOd Je[oS AHUGU] -
- 9T 11 PanUIT Seald 3urddyg pIoouo) -
. A (payuIr] S1BAL] SWDISAG OJIAUY PIOSUOD)
00°8L SB UMOWY A[ISULIOJ) DAL SUIRISAS ONAUY PIOJUOL) - spoos Jenided jo aseqoang
6Cc €9 P IJeALd BIPUJ W30 -
00961 PSINUIT 2JRALL] OIAUS 9AIOSOY -
LV €91 = PaINUIT 91BAL] SWSISAS ONAUT BASY -
0TIt * Ppayur ajeAly Suiddnyg pioouoy) -
) ] Q)N T SJBALL] SWRISAS OIIAUS PIOOUO!
86°LLT 601 Se umouy bh”m:ob WEEMME&w»w wnv.__.\,.cm—mw.mvocouo.
0L €LY LST8Y HZ.1 usuneas], % Sutpes], JajeM dnig - Spoo3 Jo Iseydang
1202 ‘YIEIN ISTE TT0T “PIIBA ISTE
Papud Jeay papud 1ea ) Kued o jo amreN HOTIDIBSURI) JO AIMEN

1894 3g) Suninp 3de(d vaye) suoydesuel) Aped pajePY  THS
(panuyuo))) saansopsip Apred pajeoy S

(P2IRIS 3110 SSA[UM ‘syppe| saadnl u junoury)
(penuyuo)) syuawa)e)s |ePuel 2Y3 0} SA)ON

890¥900Ld 166 THNOO1¥T() *NID
Pa)ImIY AeALJ (BIPU]) SWIJSAS noneaeddg WIYd0Y




B30

06767 00°LLE
16vS1 00°681 [30D elald -
666t 1 00°Z61 [0D seAeld -
$1JUdQq 99A0]dwrd uiR)-Hoyg
10T "YIHeA 151 € 0T P 51 E
POpUd 183X Papud 183§ saemInIeg
7 SV PUI W paB1o3ds $9U0F5IED 1 JO YId I0] 91eFaIdde Ul MO[9q INO 195 SI “AURAWIOD a1 JO [SUUOSISd JUSISFRUELL A3 SYj S JO UOTIBISUNWIASI 8 |,
I 1ad jeL A3 y0 woy L0 B )
{PIITWT | S1EA1] SWSJSAS CHAL PICaUD )
1€0v1 0068 Se UMOID| A[ISULIOJ) P SWISISAS OUIAlg PIOATOT) - piedaa saeo
(PIIIUT | 21EALL] SWAISAS CIAL PICOU0)
1€0v1 0068 SB UMOWY A[ISULIOY) PRI SWAISAS Ol pIoauo) - PIAIIIAI SUBOT
- 8¢81 PoD) ARy~
B 8¢ L9 [300) SEARL] -
PRI MEALL SWAISAT OJIAL] PIoatD )

- ST68 SB UMOID| A[IOLIIO)) PAINUIT SWR)SAS ONAUY PIOSUO)) - SIIMYUIQIP IQUIIATOI-UOU I[qEIIIPII PAINIISUN ¢/, T((°0 JO uondmapayy
00 91 0S'LL P SJBALL] OIIAUS 9AISSOY - predaajisodap KjIndag
007081 - P3JUIT] 3JEAL] UGS pIOSUD)) - UIALS 3150dop AJLINJeg
961 = DI JBAL OIAUY SAISSOY - Sausadxa pajepmbry

(PSJIULT] SHEAL] SUISISAS OXIATL PJOdUO.)
$861 91T S? UMOWY A|I9ULI0) PIIILIT] SWSISAS ONIAUF PIOSUOY) - SpusInLsuL [euEuYy punodmod uo Jsasdpuy
120T ‘PdIEIN ISTE 2207 'YIeN ISIE
POpUl B X PIapua Je3 x Aped Y] Jo dureN TOYOBSURI) JO JANJEN]

(panuyuo))) 1eak 33 Surinp dejd uases suoydesuey) Aped paePY  THS
(panunuo))) saansopsip Ay1ed pajepy ¥S

(pare1s aswmIatpo sse[un ‘sippef seadnu ur Junowy)
(panunuo)) sy €)S [BIOURLY A4} 0) S3JON

89079001166 THNO0THZ() ‘NID
paymIy deau (eipuy) sud)sAS uonesedsg waydroy




JISOU(] AJLINIAG - S)ISSE [EIDUEUL) JUIIIN))

je sy

ye sy

1B 8y

0095 05 18 0001 oW ] STEALid OFAUZ SAJas0Y -

0.6 9L¢ 8¢ DSIUII] SJeAN] AJoUy US91L) Wayaoy - (PIWa3p) SaSUAAX? PIEAaI ] - SJ2SSE JUBIIND Y10
0S¥ - - PSIIr] SJEAL] OJIAUL 9AISSOY -

00'0LS 00°0SL 00°0SL PSIIIF] SJeAlld 5UddIyg pioouo) - nsoda(] AJLINDGG - SJISSE [EIDURULY JUALIND-UON

S0S 6CC - PaIIT] SJEALl] ABIoUL U33I0) W0y - (PIuIaap) SISUIUXI PIEdal ] - SJISSE JUIIINMI-UOU 110
(PSNWI | 9JeALy SWISAS OliAUZ pioouo;)
- - 817l SB UMOID| AJ13ULIOJ) PN SWAISAS OJAUF PIOOUOY) -
86001 62°0C 0z 9r1 POIIT aJeAll SUIAISAS ONAUS BASY -

$9'0€ 7802 1569 P 3jeAUy uddiys prosuo)) - SIDIAIIS 10 SP00S 10J IUBAPY - SJOSSE JUILIND 19G3Q
- = 00°0C1 PONIIT ] SJPAL] OIAU SATSOY -

~ * 00°Svi DIWIT SJBALL] SAJIAIRG WAYI0Y - ANUIAI PI[IquU()

£676L°C Py 6LT 6L°L11 g7 oIAU] pIOdUOT) - SI[QEAIIIIL ped |

(pauraap)

(oL'6) (oL'7) (z8¢) pajweT sjeaud ASISUT U910 WIYIOY |  $I9LIIU0Y) IJUEIENS) [EIDUBUL] JO IN[EA JIE,] - SALIIGELT [RIDUBUL] JUSLIND) JIYIQ
(00°0) 00°0) - 90D NeI] -
000 (00’0 = [000) seAelq -
(POMWUTT S)BALL] SWRJSAG OIIAUZ PIOSUC))

(00°0) (00°0) - SE UMOWD] A[JDILIOY) P3JI SW)SAG ONAUF PIOSUOD) - anp J0u JNq PINIDIE JS2I)N] - SIPIIGEY JUILIND AP

(6671) - 9%'0) PRI SJBAL] 1m0 [B[OS AjruLfuf - SPO03 [€}IdED 10J S1031p31) - SIPIIQET] JUILIND YO

©7 999 1) 00 ¢S1S) - PAITWT] SJBAL] OJIAUL SATSS0Y - SISWOJSTD W01} PIAI3Ial IJUEAPY - SSUN[IGEN] JUs1and 1PYIQ
lree) uson = [o00) Yeraid -
(szon) - = [900) seARlq -
= 2 (96'1LL) POINLYT SIBALL SIOIAIDG WOYDOY -
(T1'80) ($6°06) (6Sv11) PSJWI SJRALL BIPUJ WAYDOY -
(89°68) (0s°€01) (95212 PO S)BALL] OJAUF SATISOY -
(€T - - 47 OJIAUF PIOOUO)) -
(PoJIWIIT 9JBALL] SWIISAS OJAU PI0SUOD)
(¢T6s1) (65°0) (00°012) SB UMOWD| A[13UL10]) PIYWT] SWIJSAS OXAUY PIOSUOY) -

(09'8LLY) (08°0€0°€) (PL'6EV°T) HZd jusuneal] 29 3uper] o Sng - sojqeAed apeay,

{powaap) spenuo)

(s0's) (620 - poIITT aJBALL] ASIOUH USoI0) WaYo0Y - 3JUBIEND) [BIDURUL] JO INJEA JIBy - (JUSLINI-UON]) SIPIIQEI] [BDTRUY OG0
(8¢'81) 8¢°81) = [900) Sela1d -
(8€°L9) (8€°L9) - [200) seARL] -

(paymuI} JeAL] SWAJSAS OIAUL PIOJUO)) saunyuagap

(sT°68) (57 68) - SE UMOWY A|18UL10§) PSIIUII'] SWRJSAS OJIAUY PIOJUOY) - 3|qUIAATOD-TIOU IGEUIIIPIL PIINIISUN 24, [((") - SSUIM0.1I0q JUSLINI-TON]

0207 ‘1dV 1510 1207 ‘“WIBIN ISIE 7207 “WOIC ISTE

Apred ayy jo awmeyN

oyIESUE) JO JAMEN

$IdUB[Eq BUIPULISING AJIed PAJERY  ppS

(PaNuURu0))) SIINSOPSIP AHed PIjeY ¥S

(Paye3s 9s1MIay10 ssa[un “SIpe] s9adru ut junoury)
(PINUYU0)) SJUIWI)E)S [BIDURULY 3G) 0) SIION

890¥900Ld 166 THINOOTHZN *NID
payry 3jeAl] (1pu]) sw)sAg uoneredag mayd0y



Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH1991PTC064068

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Amount in rupees lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

55

(a)

(®

(ii)

First time adoption of Ind AS

Refer basis of preparation and presentation in note 2.1 in relation to the transition date for the purpose of first time adoption of Ind AS

Exemptions and Exceptions Availed
The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional

exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Ind AS optional exemptions

A. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the financial
statement as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustment for decommissioning liabilities. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment at their
previous GAAP carrying value as at transition date 1st April 2020

B. Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition
[nd AS 101 provides the option to apply the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A (b) of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after the
date of transition to Ind AS. The Company elected to apply the Ind AS 109 prospectively to financial assets and financial liabilities after its transition date

C. Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
The company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind
AS

D. Leases
The company has applied the modified retrospective approach in applying Ind AS 116

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

A. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS

B. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further, the
standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if
retrospective application is impracticable. Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances
that exist on the date of transition, Measurement of financial assets accounted at amortized cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is
impracticable

C. Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the
estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not required
under previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date. Key estimates considered in
preparation of financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:

- Fair valuation of financial instruments carried at FVTPL

- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortized cost

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss model
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(c)

First time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the

reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

(i) Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st March, 2021 and April, 2020

Particulars Notes As at As at

31st March, 2021 01st April, 2020
Shareholders' equity as per previous GAAP 13,490.08 12,612.88
Remeasurement of defined benefit - -
Revised Shareholders' equity under previous GAAP 13,490.08 12,612.88
Adjustments for transition (Ind AS 101)
Ind AS 116 ( leases and security deposit in accordance with IND AS 109) ()] (255.14) (95.96)
ECL on receivables (d)(l) (3,072.62) (2,523.74)
Financial guarantee contracts (d)(iv) 9.70 3
Amortisation of financial guarantee contracts (d)(iv) (9.70) -
Goodwill amortisation (d)(x) 154.82 -
Fair Value Impact - Derivative (d)v) 0.13 4.18
Compound financial instruments classified as financial liability (d)(viii) (240.42) (220.57)
Provision against regulatory liability (d)(ix) (50.00) (50.00)
Total Adjustment (3,463.23) (2,886.09)
Deferred tax on adjustment (d)(vi) 606.90 601.90
Shareholder’s equity as per Ind AS 10.633.75 10,328.69

(ii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income

Particulars Notes As at

31st March, 2021
Profit / (Loss) as per previous GAAP 877.20
Revised Shareholders' profit under Indian GAAP 877.20
Adjustments for transition (Ind AS 101)
Ind AS 116 ( leases and security deposit in accordance with IND AS 109) (d)(i) (159.18)
ECL on receivables (d)(ii) (548.88)
Deferred Tax on adjustment (d)(vi) 5.00
Financial guarantee contracts (d)(iv) 9.70
Amortisation of financial guarantee contracts (d)(iv) (9.70)
Goodwill amortisation (d)(x) 154.82
Interest on compound financial instruments classified as financial liability (d)(viii) (19.85)
Fair Value Impact - Derivative (d)(v) -4.05
Total (5§72.14)
Remeasurement of defined benefit (d)(vii) (0.13)
Total Comprehensive income [Profit / (Loss) as per Ind AS] 305.06
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(i)

(ii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

First time adoption of Ind AS (Continued)

Notes to first-time adoption

Leases (Ind AS 116)
Ind AS 116 - Leases effective from April 1, 2020, prescribes accounting of the lease contracts/arrangements. The company had applied Ind AS 116 for

preparing the Ind AS audited financial statements for the period beginning from April 1, 2020, For the purpose of preparing Financial Statements, Ind AS 116
has been applied using the modified retrospective approach with effect from April 1, 2020 as prescribed by ICDR, 2020.

Effective April 1, 2020, the company had recognised lease liability measured at an amount equal to present value of remaining lease payments and
corresponding Right of Use asset at an amount equivalent to lease liability adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before April 1, 2020, ROU assets are being amortized over the period of the lease. Interest on lease
liabilities are recognised as charge following incremental rate of borrowing method and lease liabilities (including interest) are adjusted either on settlement
through periodic payouts or on reversal for rent concessions negotiated with lessors.

The company has elected to applied the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and low-value assets recognition exemption as stated in Ind AS 116

Under previous GAAP, interest free security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the term) are recorded at their transaction value, 1Inder Ind
AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised initially at fair value. Accordingly, the company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS and
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as Right to Use
(ROU) asset. Consequent to this the amount of Security deposits was reduced and simultaneously debit to ROU Asset, Amortisation of ROU Asset was
charged to the statement of P&L over there period of security deposit along with simultaneous credit to the P&L as interest income through unwinding of
income over term of the security deposit .

Impairment of trade receivables
Under previous GAAP, the company has created ad hoc provision for impairment of trade receivables

Under IndAS, the company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were
initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for
information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as
permitted by Ind AS 101 .Impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit loss method as per simplified approach

Corporate guarantee issued by the company
Financial guarantee contracts are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified party fails
to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument, Financial guarantee contracts are recognized as a financial liability at the time
the guarantee is issued at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently, the liability is
measured at the higher of the amount of expected loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amortization Under previous GAAP, no such fair value adjustments where carried out

FFair value impact of Devivatives

Under previous GAAP, company amortized the forward premium paid over the term of the contract.

Under Ind-AS, Forward contract (i.e. Derivative Contract) is required to be classified and measured at fair value through profit and loss at each reporting
date,

Deferred Tax

Under Ind AS, deferred tax has been recognised on the adjustment made on transition to Ind AS. previous GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the
income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period Ind AS 12 required entities to account
for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an assel or liability in the balance
sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required
under previous GAAP.

Defined benefit liabilities

Under Ind AS, remeasurements on defined benefit plans i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit and loss. Under the previous GAAP, these
remeasurements were forming part of the profit and loss for the year There is no impact on total equity

Recognition of financial instruments

Under previous GAAP, equity and preference shares were recognised under share capital as part of shareholders fund.

Under IND-AS, with reference to Ind AS 32 on (Financial Instruments- Presentation) which deals with the measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities define the "Equity instruments" as instruments that evidence a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all its liability. The
obligation by the Company to purchase its own equity instruments for cash is considered as liability. The liability component is disclosed under the head
"Borrowing (non-current) and the equity component, which represents the residual amount, is disclosed under the head "Other Equity", The effective interest
on such instrument classified as "Financial Liability" is disclosed separately under the head "Finance cost",

Provision against regulatory lability

While transitioning to IndAS, the company has made the provision for the compounding fees payable based on the application filed u/s 441 of the Companies
Act, 2013 for non-compliance with Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year 2014-15 and financial year 2015-16.

No such provision was made in the financial statements reported under previous GAAP.

Goodwill
Under previous GAAP, the goodwill (acquired in a business combination) was being amortised on a systematic basis over its useful life.
Under Ind-AS, goodwill (acquired in a business combination) is required to be test for impairment annualty and_natrequired to be amortised on a systematic
basis over its useful life. Therefore, the goodwill has been restated at the carrying amount as at the date of ;-ﬁqrr um}%&\lumcd for impairment
’ P~ e N

70
Ij_r"/‘:.\/_ “ N\
ot 2\
IEI:’-‘(' \I?. .
[ MUNBAI )= !
i )l
w ._.'51
EAN e/
AT /
oy~ 0%/
"‘Q‘_;:‘__":_ —



= . = = 817 16'v by SOUINIqE]] [elouenl (B30
TdAL3
- - - = 81'C = = 16 - 1€ %S 12 PSJUNOODE SAATRALIS(] ®
SNIIqel| [eouedlf q
050 - 050 05°0 - - 050 ks 00°s¥ $)IsSE [RIdURUL] [EIOY
TdALA
0s°0 - 050 050 = = 050 = 00°sy 0l e JUSUnSIAUL [eloueul] ®
SJOSSE [BIOUBUL] \%
€ PAYT 7 19A9T] [ PAYT € PAYT 7 [PA] T PAT € [PAT T PA] 1 [2A97] 10 S _—
0707 "[4dV IS] 18 SV 1707 "4 ISTE JE SY TT0T "PIEN IST€ 1B SY
*3N[eA e} Je PSINSESU PUB PISTUS0231 16 JBY} SJUSWNLSUI [RIOURUY U} JO SIN[RA Tref o) SUIUIILS)Op Ul Speu sajeulmss oy) pue jusuredpnf ay) surefdxs uonods siy] »
pa1ussald sreak o SULMp ¢ - [9AS] PUR 7 - [9AJ] [ - [9AS] USIM]D SIQJSURI) OU 21OM 919 ], (A1)
‘TeaA 3un1odal JO puL 37 I8 SIAMD P[SIA PUR S3JB1 3FUBYIXS PIBMIO] GO PISE] S1 SISA0D PIRMIO] UO JONIBW-01-3IejA sindul g - [SAS] SUISN Pauruus)sp Snfea ey (m)
"3N|A IIEY 30} JO SALRIUSSa1dAI 3q 0} PAISPISUOD SI an[ea FUIALED Y, ‘SINAUT ¢ - [9AD] PUE | - [SAS] SUISN PIUTULISISP SN[EA IB (m
"3]qE) 9A0qE SY} UL SWeS Sy} J0J SPBUL US3q SBY SMSO[OSIP 3jeredas OU “swodul SA1SuY21dw0d 13110 Y3NOIy) SNTeA JreJ 12 PSINSeSW Si YoIym AJIqer] [BISUBUT 9SSy [BLOURUL] OU SI 313Y) S0UIS ()]
=1 9JON
69°916°EC 69°916°€T r 96'¥61"0T 8L°T6F 0T 817 TL'99¢€°81 [8°19€°8T L(34 SoNIIIqeEl [eloukmy [B)0 ],
((4) pue (m) s10u 19503
L8°0TC L8'0TC - L8T1 95°9Z1 81T 99°6vC SLOvT 6y [€% ST [SeUIIqen  [ePUEUy  13PQ (A
W00r9°Tl 0'0v9°CL - 99'0L6°6 99°0L6'6 - 610658 61'065'8 E o€ so[qeAed apei] ()
0€'128°¢ 0E'1T8'¢ - 68°SL8°E 68°5L8°C * 05°188C 051887 = 6T%® VT SanTIqe] asea] (m
ISPETL ISvETL = 896159 896159 = LE6Y9'9 LE6Y99 e 8T® LT saummosrog ®
sapIiqer jeueuly q
0T'1S0°S1 0L°0S0°S1T 050 ITreEr'eEl IL°EEY°EL 05°0 LL99TTH LTITTTI 05°sP SJISSE [RIOUERUL} [E)O],
[A%1}] ress % 057926 05°9L6 = ¥6 598 ¥6 598 = 61211 SJassE [eloueuy 1O ()
6v'y 6v'y * €901 £1°901 3 €6 SI1 £6°ST1 = 81 Sueo’y ()
98'¥6¥% 98 vor = 79°69¢ 79°69¢ = £6CTS £6 7S - L1 SouETEq UBQ IO ()
[4%:19 [4%:1% - 86T 186 - 0988 0988 F 91 SJUS[eAIND YSed pue yse)) (m)
16'679°¢1 16'679°¢1 - SOISLIL SOISLTI = L8'LTI01 L8'LTY0L L S1 Sa]qeAladar apel], (m
((») pue
05°0 = 050 0s0 = 050 0s'sy F 0SSy 01 (11) 9100 10§o3) SIUSUDSIAU] (03]
S}3SSE [BlOURUL] v
194 YSnoIy} angea T®d YsSnoayy snjea T9d y3nolg) anfea
anpeA mAiie) 150D PIZYIOWY | JIBJ JE PIINSEIPA] anpeA Suif1iB) 1800 pIzndoWy | JIEJ )€ PAINSBIN anieA Smiiie) 1S0D) PIZRIOWY | J1€) JB PAINSEIA AoN SIB[NONIRY “ON IS
0707 THdV IsT 38 sV 1207 “U1BIAl ISI€ 1B SY TT0T ‘YIIBIA ST € I8 SV

(JUALINY) PUE JUIIIND-UON]) SIYI[IGBI| PUE JISSE [RISUBUL (E)

JUIWIINSEIL IN[EA I18) 7 SHONEIJISSED FUL MY - S 1)sul [gduBUl] 9§

(pa3e1s astmIatno sso[un ‘syse| saadni up Junoury)
(Panunuo))) S1USWIAIE)S [EDURUL ) 0) SIION
89079001d166 THINOOTHZ( ‘NIO

payunry jeauy (eipuj) smayscg uoneiedag wagroy



“BJEP J93IeW S[GRAISS]O UO PISE] JOU SIe JBY) AN[BA kY POPIOAI 3y} UO J03J2 JUBDYIUFIS B SAEY Jey) SINAUl 3T YoIgMm SINDIUYO] © € [9AS]
"AROSTIPUI 10 ARSI 19I5 *I[qBAISSQO AJE JM[EA JTEJ PAPIOISI 37 UO J03R JUBOYIUSIS B SARY (DM SJdU [[B YoIyMm I0F SaNbIUGoa)} 1910 : 7 [9AS]
"SSNI[IGE] 1O S}3SSE [2oNUSPI 10J S)SIBUI 2ANOE UT S30LId (Pajsnipeun) pajony) : | [9A]

:SMO[O] SE JUSWAMSesw 343 0} spdul Jweogrusis Jo ANIGeAIsqo 3G} U0 Paseq PAUPSP I8 S|4 31 YL, “AYdIeIoN anfea ITej € JO S[oAa] 3314} 03Ul padnoil e pue JUsWa)e)s [BIOUULY 9Y) Ul AN[BA 1] J8 POMSEau SIe SONIIQRI] [E10UBUY PUE SJOSSE [BIOURHL]
AQOIRIIN] In[eA 16 g ()
spmoure SmA1res 1ay) 0} fenba Asjeurxoidde a1e SOOIIQRI] [BIOURAT PUE S}OSSE [BIIUBUL JO SN[EA T oYL,

9JE JUSWIDMSESW o) Je sjwedidnred JoyIem usa/19q UONORSTRL ALISPIO U UT AJIqer| € 19jSuey) o) pred 10 Josse
UE []3S 03 PIAI03I 3q PINOM Jet JUNOUTE ST J& PSPNIOUT SIE SIRIIGEI] PUE SJSSE [RI0USUY S JO SaN[eA I1ej Y “O|qE[TeAR EIEp JUEAS[QI JSOW PUE JS3q o1} Suisn SORIIqe]] [BIoUeuy JO SJSse [eloueul anfea 0) sampaooid pue sarorod sureyureur Awedwoy) o]

$INDIUYd3) monen[eA J1eq (q)

(panumued) JUIWAINSEIW IN[BA 118} P SUOHEINISSE]D TUPIMOIIY - SJUSWNIISUT [BIDUBUL] 95



Rochem Separation Systems (India) Private Limited
CIN: U24100MH 1991 PTC064068

Notes to the fi

ol sta (Conti 4

(Amount in rupees takhs, unless otherwise stated)

57

(a)

(b)

Risk management [ramework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overalt responsibility for the establish and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework The board of directors is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk policies, The Company's risk licies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk policies and sy are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how management
monitors compliance with the Company’s risk licies and procedures, and reviews the ad y of the risk framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of Directors is
assisted in its oversight role by intemnal audit team. Internal audlt team undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk Is and p dures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors.
The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
« Credit risk;
« Liquidity risk;
» Market risk

- Interest rate risk

- Foreign currency exposure
Credit risk :
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a fi ial instrument or leading to a fi ial loss The pany is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables) and from its fi ing activities, including d with banks and other financial instruments

Trade receivable
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. To manage trade receivable, the Group periodically
assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the fi ial diti ic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and aging of such receivables

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dale is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 56(a). The Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its cuslomers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets

Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial instilutions is managed by the management in accordance with the Company’s policy Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the management on an annual basis, and
may be updated throughout the period / year. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments

Liquidity risk :

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations iated with its fi ial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to Company's reputation

M itors rolling fc of the C y's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs Such forecasting takes

into consideration the C y’s debt fi ing plans, covenant compliance and compliance with intemnal statement of financial position ratio targets

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities:
The following are the remaining undiscounted contraclual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date:

Particulars Less than | vear 1 4o 5 venr Abgve S years Total

As at 31st March, 2022

Borrowings 5,956.99 569.44 33658 6,863.01
Lease liabilities 1,322,01 2,176.52 - 3,498 53
Trade payables 8.,590,19 - - 8,590.19
Other financial liabilities 245.66 . - 245.66
As at 31st March, 2021

Borrowings 5,503.81 82273 691 76 7,01830
Lease liabilities 1,458 42 3,51084 . 4,969 26
Trade payables 9,970.66 . . 9,970 66
Other financial liabilities 126,45 229 . 128 74
As at 1st April, 2020

Borrowings 6,745 53 11973 691 76 7,557 02
Lease liabilities 1,150,68 3.799.10 21242 516220
Trade payables 12,640.03 - - 12,640.03
Other financial liabilities 21582 505 - 22087
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57 Risk management framework (Continued)

(e} Market risk
Market risk is the risk (hat changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interesi rates and equity prices — will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments, Market risk is
attributable fo all markel risk sensilive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related o foreign exchange rale risk,
interest rate risk and the market value of certain commodities Thus, its exposure to market risk is a function of invesling and borrowing activities and revenue generating and operaling activities The objective of market risk
management is to avoid excessive exposure in revenues and cosls

In relation to long term contracts (including derivative contracts) company has a process to assess for material foresceable losses. At the end, the Company has reviewed and ensured Ihat there are no material foreseeable
losses.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market inlterest rates will lead to changes in fair value of financial insiruments or changes in inlerest income, expense and cash flows of the Company

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities The Company’s interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligations.

Exposure to interest vate visk

: As at As at As at
Particulars i
30st March, 2022 Alst March, 2021 1st April. 2020

Fixed 1ate inslumenls

- Borrowings 353.46 355,48 8R1.20
Floating rate insirumenis

- Borrowings 629591 5,989 20 6.17831
Total 6.649.37 6,344.68 708951

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments
The company does not accounl for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss

Fair value sensifivity analysis for floating-rate instruments
The following fable demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the company’s profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floaling rate barrowings, is as follows:

Effect on profit before tax
Effect Increase/ (decrease) in As at As at As at
bazis points 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
INR - Increase 100.00 62 96 5989 6178
INR - Decrease (100 00) (62.96) (59.89) (61.78)

{ii) Foreign currency exposure

The company undertakes (ransactions denominaled in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters ulitising
forward foreign exchange contracts

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

As at As at As at
Particulars Curency 31st March. 2022 st March, 2021 1st ;A_E-_i!; 2020
In foreign currency In INR In foreign currency In INR In foreign curvency In INR
Financial assels USD 407 307.88 584 428 42 4002 2,996 35
Financial liabilities USD 3921 2,966 74 46 86 3,438 09 7802 5,842 05
EUR 002 151 104 89 34 014 1170
AED N o4 0 R4 - - - .

'ency sensitivity analysis:

Foreign cu

The table below outlines the effect of change in foreign currencies exposure to the profit before lax ("PBT") of the company

. . . As at As at

Cupacipnpritir o Lurency 31st March. 2022 |31st March, 2021 20

INR strengthens by 1% UsD 2659 010 25 7R
ELIR 0.02 089 012
AED 001 ] =

INR weakens by 1% 1ISD (26 59) (30 10) (25 78)
EUR (0.02) {0.29) (0.12)
AED oon = =

58 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability (o continue as a going concem in order lo provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capilal structure (o reduce the cost of capilal. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt, (Refer note 53 for Debt Equity Ratio and Debt Service coverage ralio)

The capital siructure of the Company consists of equity of the Company (comprising issued capital and inlemal accruals), preference shares, and other long-term borrowings
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59 Reconciliation of quarterly bank returns
(Rs in lakhs)
Name of Bank Particulars Quarter Amount as per books of Amount as reported in Amount of difference
Account uarterly returns
Working Capital Lenders* Debtors 31st March, 2021 1,532 46 1,539.82 (7.36)
Working Capital Lenders* Stock 31st March, 2021 88604 883 09 295
Working Capital Lenders* Debtors 31st December, 2020 1,436 89 1,362.64 74.25
Working Capital Lenders* Stock 31st December, 2020 928 07 859.65 68.42
Working Capilal Lenders* Debtors 30th September, 2020 1,401.39 1,39292 847
Working Capital Lenders* Stock 30th September, 2020 905.49 856 58 48,91
Working Capital Lenders* Deblors 30th June, 2020 1,526 35 1,513.10 1325
Working Capital Lenders* Stock 30th June. 2020 1,049 42 986 95 62,47
*1CICI bank Limited, Bank of India, Standard Chartered Bank and IDBI Bank
Note for differences:
The bank returns were prepared and filed before the pletion of all fi ial closure aclivilies, which led lo these differences between the final books of account and the bank return which were based on provisional books
of account
60 Disclosures as per section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013
. . Purp.o.se (.i.e proposed Relationship with the As at As at As at
Sr. mo. Name of the recipient entity utilization by the company 31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 Lt April, 2020
recipient
1 Loans given
Calvin Associates Private Limited Business/corporate None 100.00 100 00 -
veneral purpose
Employees Medical and other None 1593 613 449
FEAsGN
2 Investments made
(1) Investments in equity shares
Saraswat Co-operative Bank None 0.50 050 0.50
3 Guarantees given
Rochem Green Energy Private Limited Term Loan Enterprises over which key 221223 782.10 97339
managerial personnel is
able 1o exercise significant
influence (where there are
transactions)
Cancord Shippine Private Limited Term Loan = . . S0N 97

61 Other notes
61.01  The Company do nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property
61.02  The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during reporting years
61.03  The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the undersianding thal the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entiles identfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultmate Beneficiaries

61,04  The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) wilh the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or entites identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultmate Beneficiaries) or
(b )provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries

61,05  The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)
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61 Other notes ( Continued)

61,06  The Company does not have any borrowings from banks and financial institutions hat are used for any other purpose other than the specific purpose for which it was taken at the reporting balance sheet date
61.07  The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017
61.08  The Company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the any reporting years.
61.09  The Company does not have any investment property during any reporting years, the disclosure related to fair value of investment property is not applicable
61,10  The Company is not covered under Section 8 , thus related disclosure is not applicable
6111  There are no scheme of arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the reporting years
61.12  Relationship with companies whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956, balance outslanding as at year is as under
Sr.no. |Name of struck oflf Company Nature of transuctions with strnckeoff As at As at Asat
Company 31st March. 2022 31st March, 2021 1st April, 2020
I Bachi Shoes ( India) Private Limited Trade receivables 1.41 I 41
2 Mercury Travels Limited Advances for supply of goods and services 0.31 0.31
3 Nutech Cooling Towers Private Limited Advances for supply of goods and services 071 071
4 Dilip Security Services Private Limited Trade payables - 292
61.13  Details of delay in registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) Mumbai
Date of creation
Description of the charges or satisfaction Charge ID /modification Due date of Filing Actual date of Filing Reason
/satisfaction
Moification of charge 10068184 15-04-2021 14.06-2021 23-08-202 | | Delay in docurmentatian procedure
Crention of chirpe 100422832 12:02-202] 14-03-202] 16-03-202 | | Delay in documentation procedure
Modificanon of clirge 100072310 30-06-2021 29-07-2021 23-08-2021 | Delay in documeéntmtion procedure
Creation of chnge 100521 664 10-12-2021 09.01-2022 13-01-2022 | Delay m docomentanon procedure
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61.14

61.15

61,16

Otlier notes ( Continued)

Impact of COVID - 19

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses aiound the globe, including India. There has been severe disruption to regular operations due to lock-downs and other emes gency measures which may have an shorl-tenn
impact of revenucs of the Company. The management has used the principles of prudence in applying jud i and ions and based on the cunent estimales, the management expects to fully recover the carrying
amount of inventories, trade receivables and other assels. Having regard to the above and the Company's liquidity position, there is no material uncertainty in meeling it's liabilities in lhe foreseeable future, However, the eventwal
outcome of intpact of the global health pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial information owing to the nature and duration of the pandemic

Code of Social Security, 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relaling to employee benefils during employ and post-employ benefits received Presidenlial assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India

Tlowever, the date on which the Code will come in to effect has not been notified. Tiic Company will assess (e impact of the Code whien it comes info effect and will record any related impact in the year when the Code becomes

effective

Previous Year Figures have been recompanyed / rearranged ,wherever considercd necesaary to conform to current years classification.

For and an bolulf of the Board of Direefors
Rovhem Separaijon Systems (Indlu) Private Limited

! (0

Prerak Goel
Managing Director Whale time Direclor
DIN: 00348519 DIN: 00348563
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: 29th September, 2022 Date: 29th September, 2022




